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KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

The Directors present their report, together with the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April
2019.

Principal Activities

The company is the General Partner in the Key Capital Partners Fund.

Directors

The Director of the Company during the year ended 30 April 2019 was Owen Trotter.

Business Review

The company continued to act as the General Partner in the Key Capital Partners Fund. The year-end
financial position of the company was satisfactory, and the director expects that the present level of
activity will be maintained for the foreseeable future.

Resuits

The Company’s profit for the year was £1 (2018; f21).

Status of this Directors’ Report

This report is prepared in accordance with the small companies’ regime under the Companies Act 2008.

This report was approved by the Board on 23rd July 2019 and signed on its behalf.

Brigid Rodgers
Company Secretary



KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors have elected {0 prepare the Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).
Under Company law the Directors must not approve the Financiat Statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period. In preparing these Financial Statements, the Director is required to:

» select suitable Accounting Policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis.
The Director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the

Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.



KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019
Note 2019 2018
£ £
Gross Profit
231,013 318,633
Net operating expenses :
Administrative expenses {231,012)) {318,632)
Operating profit/(loss) on ordinary 1 1-
activities before taxation '
interest receivable and similar - -
income
Profit/ (loss) on Ordinary Activities 1 1
before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities - -
Profit/ (loss) for the Financial Year 1 1

Profit for the year has been calculated on the historical cost basis.

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 7 to 8 form part of these Financial Statements.



KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD

. COMPANY NUMBER 05696941

BALANCE SHEET
AT 30 APRIL 2019
Note ' 2019
£
Fixed Assets
Investments 3 130
Current Assets
Debtors , 4 151
Cash at bank and in hand : 150
Net Current Assets ' 301
Creditors: amounts falling due after (427)
one year
{126)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 4
Capital and Reserves
Called up share capital 5 1
Profit and loss account 6 3
4

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 7 to 8 form part of these Financial Statements.

2018

130

16
164
180

(307)

(127

GIN =



KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD
COMPANY NUMBER 05696941

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AT 30 APRIL 2019

2019 2018

£ £

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 1 : 1
Increase in debtors {135) (15)
Increase in creditors ' 120 142
(Decrease)/increase in cash {14) 128
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 May 2018 164 36
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 Aprit 2018 150 164




KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD
COMPANY NUMBER 05696941
BALANCE SHEEY
AT 30 APRIL 2019
These Financial Statements are prepared in acc;ordance with the provisions applicable to companies
subject to the small companies regime under the Companies Act 2006.

For the year ended 30 April 2019 the company was eniitled to exemption under section 477 of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

No members have required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in gquestion in
accordance with section 476 of the Companies Act 2008,

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect
to accounting records and for the preparation of accounts.

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 23rd July
2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Chon Bl 1

Owen Trotter
Director

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 7 to 8 form part of these Financia! Statements.
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KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

Accounting Policles

A summary of the more important Accounting Policies is set out below.

Basis of Accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention.

Turnover

Turnover derives from income as the General Partner in the 13 Limited Partnerships which comprise
the Key Capital Partners Fund. All the partnerships are registered in the United Kingdom.

Investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment.

Taxation

The Company's taxation is based on the accounts of the 13 Limited Partnerships which comprise the
Key Capital Partners Fund. This treatment is not reflected in these accounts.



KEY CAPITAL PARTNERS (GENERAL PARTNER) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019
Accounting Policies (continued)

No provision has been made for deferred tax

Investments
Cost at 1 May and 30 April 2019 £130 £130

The holding comprises the company's investment in the 13 Limited Partnerships of the Key
Capital Partner Fund

Debtors 2019 2018
Other debtors 151 16
Creditors 2019 2018
Other creditors . 427 307
Share Capital

Allotted and Called Up

“A” ordinary shares of £7 each : ‘ 1 1
Own Profit & Loss
Reserves Shares Account Total
£ £ £
At 1 May 2018 | 1 2 3
Retained profit for the year ' - 1 1
At 30 April 2019 1 3 4

Related Party Transactions

The Company paid management fees totalling £231,000 (2018: £318,632) to Key Capital
Partners LLP the manager of the Key Capital Partners Fund

Parent Undertaking and Ultimate Controlling Party

The ultimate parent in calculating and controliing company is Key Capital Partners LLP, a Limited
Liability Partnership registered in the United Kingdom
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Key Gapital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019
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Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019
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Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners (General Partner} Limited (the “General Pariner”) has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP (the
“Manager”) to manage the Partnership, The Manager presents the financial statements for Key Capital Parthers
FUND KCP 1-A (the “Partnership”) for the year ended 30 April 2018.

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “small” under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors' Reporf) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a stratedic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors
The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Parinership's auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to

make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the speciai provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2006, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

O el

Qwen Trotter
Designated Member

g/{ /2019

KC KEY CAPITAL
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Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financiat Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responslbllities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsibie for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law as applied to qualifying parinerships by The Fartnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
*Regulations”) requires the General Partner 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the General Pariner has prepared the Parinership’s financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
1o qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Parinership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financlal statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate {o presume that the
Partnership wiil continue in business.

The General Partner Is rasponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parinership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations, The General Partner is also responsible for safsguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

PARTNERS page 5



‘Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the NMiembers of Key Capital Pariners FUND KCP 1-A
Opinion

We have audited the Finpancial Statements of Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A (the “Partnership™) for the year
anded 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position,
the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been appiied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Praclice).

in our opinion the Financial Statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Parinership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilted our other athical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the folfowing matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:

« the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

+ the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue,

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual repott, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereen. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
staternents does not cover the other information and, except ta the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financiat statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears fo be
materizily misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
fo determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we canclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other informatian, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
» the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC . KEY CAPITAL
'PARTHNERS page 6



Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Key Capital Partners FUNED KCP 1-A (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Parfnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material miastatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 20086, as applied
fo qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been Kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recsived
from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« the Partnership was not entilled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied o
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsl|bilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfled that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal conirol as the General Partner determines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting uniess the General Partner gither intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no raalistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
maferial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audiior's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibiliies for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financlal
Repoding Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parinership’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agresment and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audif work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fuilest extent permiited by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Parinership and the Partnership's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

e

lan Cowan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Litllejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus
Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf
London E14 4HD

August 2019

KCP I ER:FV RS page 7



‘Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 80 370
Interest income 170 29,895
230 30,265

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 7 (355,285) 741,241
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 355,079 {719,808}
Profit for the financial year 24 51,888

Ali results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, ho
Statement of Cther Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes cn pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC P KEY. CAPITAL
"PARTNERS page 8



Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Posltion

Non-current assets

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital contribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Pariners
Retained earnings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

As at As at

30 Aprii 2019 30 April 2018
E £

185,385 726,666
261 200

7N {77

184 123
185,569 726,789
140 140
3,069,325 3,089,325
(5,233,819) (4,692, 575)
2,349,523 2,348,899
185,569 726,789

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102,

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on A / (/ 2019,

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

(Do Dol

Cwen Trotier
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12171
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Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprit 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
1 Background and Partnership Agreement

Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A is a Limited Partnership {the “Partnership”) established in England under the
Limited Partnerships Act 1807, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the "Agreement”) dated 1 May 2007.

The principal purpose of the Parinership is to carry on the business of investing in gualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement,

The Parthership commenced operations on 1 May 2007 and will continue in existence until all invesiments of the
Partnership have been sold or liquidated unless extended or dissolved eatlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
1 May 2007.

The Manager is an authorised persen under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA”).
As a consequence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolics, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Parinership have been preparad in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 162"} and the Companies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Parinerships (Accounts} Regulations 2008,

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise slated. The Parinership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnarship's financial statements:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling (‘GBP*, “£"), which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting esfimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Partnership’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

{b) Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calis based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital info the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments fo meet future
obligations, payment of Pricrity Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonabie expectation that the Partnership has adequate
rasources to confinue in operational existence for the foreseeable fulure. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

KC P l SEYR?‘%P::TQ IE page 11



Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3

(©

(d)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
ecanomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Met Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Pariner is entitled to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quartetly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfail shall be
paid to the Generai Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Parnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Gommitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

(e} Taxation

0

The Partnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statemants. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Pariner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments,
() Financial asssts

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
fransaction price, unless the amangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the fulure receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are Initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair vaiue are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b} substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or (c} control of the asset has been fransferred to another party who has the practical ability to unitaterally
sell the asset 1o an unrelated third party without impasing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial liabilities

Basic financial fiabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, they are presented as nan-current Habilities. Trade creditors ara recognised nitially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest meathod.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liabiiity is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

| KEY CAPITAL
KC "'PARTNERS page 12



Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Staterments for year ended 30 April 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year uniess there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines, Adjustments in the value of investments are reflacted In the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment s made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
inciuding expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inpuis in the earnings muitiples models inciude
observable data, such as eamings multiples of comparable companies to the relevant porifolic company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the portfolic company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the porifalio companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
those companies being unable to meet their joan stock obligations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditurs

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors' remuneration have been borne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incurred by the General Partner through the management ard administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Pariners,

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

8 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Other payables 77 77
77 7
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'Key Capital Partners FUND KCP 1-A

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7 Financlal assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Shares Loan Stock Total

£ £ £

Cost
As at 1 May 2018 560 370,821 371,381
Disposals {529) {370,082) {370,611)
Restructuring * - 184,615 184,615
As at 30 April 2019 31 185,354 185,385
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 355,285 - 355,285
Change for the year (355,285) - (355,285)
As at 30 April 2019 - - -
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 31 185,354 185,385
As at 30 April 2018 365,845 370,821 726,666

* The Parinership has reissued its £1,800,000 of deferred consideration of loan note in Templine for a 4% secured

loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair

value through profit or loss:

« Level 1: Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or fiabilitles

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this categary.

¢« Level 2. Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or Indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

¢« Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

The Partnership's investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £185,385 (30 April 2018: £726,666) were

categorised under this category.

B Investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership

Siamo Azzurt Limited {t/a Templine) Provision of recruitment

1p *A’ Ordinary Shares [ UK services to the logistics 52,923 5.20%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2014

Neville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and

£1'A' Ordinary Shares l UK installation of bespoke 31 0.01%

10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015

furniture

* Represents the shareholding of investors opting in the rollover following the sale of Neville Johnson in May 2014.

KCP | 55n s
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Key Capital Parfners FUND KCP 1-A
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

9 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Pariners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entiled to a fee from the General Pariner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duquenoy are the Desighated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Parther received £7,536 (30 April 2018; £13,828) as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts cutstanding at the year end.

10 Ultimate Controlling Party
The immediate controliing party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners {(General Pariner) Limited, a wholly owned

subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

ik Provision for Carried Interest

If the investment portfolio were to be fully realised at the vaiues included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2019,
there would be a reallocation of Income between Key Capital Pariners (Catried Interest) LLF and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners (Carrigd Interest) LLP Net Income of £18,538 {30 April 2018: £53,028)

for Key Capital Partners Fund { being an estimate, caiculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Partnership
Agreement, of the carried interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April 2019,
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprit 2018

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited (the “General Pariner”} has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP (the
‘Manager”) to manage the Partnership. The Manager presents the financial statements for East Riding of Yorkshire
Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP (the “Partnership”} for the year ended 30
April 2018,

Strateglc Report

The Partnership is considered as “small” under Section 4148 of The Companies Act 2008 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Reporf) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Parinership’s auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

@/@M % &77 G

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

5/43 2019
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsibie for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law as applied {o qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations”) requires the General Pariner to prepare finangial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Parnership’s financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accaunting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements, Under company law as applied
to qualifying partnershipg, the General Pariner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Parinership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Pariner is required fo:

»  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements oh the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Pariner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’'s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
gualifying partnerships by the Regulaticns. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Adminlstering Authority
of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East
Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP (the *Partnership”) for the year ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of
Comprehensive income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Aftributable to
Pariners and notes to the financlal statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended,;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and .

s« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships {(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Infernational Standards on Auditing (UK} (1SAs {UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fartnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Wae have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) reguire us to report to
you where:

» the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

+ the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue fo adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at [east twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for Issue,

Other information

The ather information comprises the information included in the annuai repart, other than the financial statements and
our ayditor's report thergon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Qur apinion on the financial
statemenis does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in daing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materizlly misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a2 material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this
other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financia! year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financiat statements; and
« the Repoit of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC ' KEY CAPITAL
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority
of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP {continued)

Maiters on which we are required fo report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006, as applied
to qualifying partherships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ the Partnership was not entitled to {ake advantage of the simall companies’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the Genperal Pariner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Rasponsibilities, the General Pariner is responsibie for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Pariner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the Partnership's ability fo
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
hasis of accounting unless the General Partner gither intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsihilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisichs of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/audiforsresponsibifities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilify to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

I lund

lan Cowan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Littiejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus
Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf
London E14 4HD

August 2019
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 227 512
Interest income 137,955 173,440
138,182 173,952

Unrealised {loss) / gain on investments 8 (2,159,323) 1,652,384
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 2,777,563 (719,606)
Profit for the financial year 756,422 1,106,730

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recegnised above. Accordingly, no

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC  KEY CAPITAL
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Position

As at As at
30 April 2019 30 Aprit 2018
Notes £ £
Non-current assets
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss 8 2,174,499 5,355,516
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 8 72,244 252,311
Cash and cash equivalents 284 3,086
72,528 255,397
Current Llabilities
Trade and other payables 7 (78) (2,847)
Net Current Assets 72,450 252,450
Net Assets attributable fo Partners 2,246,949 5,607,956
Partners’ accounts
Capital contribution account 140 140
| oan account 8,581,717 8,681,717
Distribution to Partners {16,989,701) {12,872,262)
Retained earnings 10,654,793 9,898,371
Total Partners' Funds 2,246,949 5,607,966

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities
subject to the Smail Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102,

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,
Key Capital Partners LLP on /¢ 2019,

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP
Chtu Tl 7

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12175
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited
Partnership (the “Parinership™, established in England under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited
Partnership Agreement (the "Agreement”) dated 1 May 2007,

The principal purpose of the Partnership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 1 May 2007 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Parinership have been sold or liguidated unless extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
1 May 2007,

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (“FSMA”).
As a consequence, the Manager is permitted fo manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority,

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in caompliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of ireland” (*FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2008 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The Patrnership has applied the Small Entitias Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently appiied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopied
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnership's financial statements:

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
madified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling ("GBF”, “£"), which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. 1t also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Partnership’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

{b) Going concern

The Parinership meets its working capital requirements through capital calis based on the level of comimitmernts
of each Pariner. Pariners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Partnership has adegquate remaining capital commitments to meet fulure
obligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after considerafion of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligations.

After meking enquiries, the General Pariner has a reasonable expectation that the Parinership has adequate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
gaoing concern basis in prepating the financial statements.

KEY CAPITAL
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statetnents for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3
(©

C)

(e)

®

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the ravenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits assocliated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net Incorne, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entitied to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period Is insufficient to pay the Priorily Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shalil be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown fiom Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Partnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
stafements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Pariner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
()} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
lransaction price, unless the amangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future recesipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Other basic financial assets, incfuding investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b) substantiaily all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are fransferred to another
party or (c) controf of the asset has been transferred to anather party who has the practical ability to unilaterally
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially raecognised at the traneaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing fransaction, where the debt instrument ls measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabikities if payment is due within one ysay or lass. If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initiafly at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabiiities are derecognised when the fiability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires,

KC i KEY CAPITAL 1
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{g) Fair value of investments

Invesfments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. ln subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as caloulated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are coniinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and cother factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasconable under the circumstances.

Fair value of invesiments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the earnings multiples models include
observable data, such as earnings muitiples of comparable companies to the relevant portfolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the portfolic company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
perindically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the portfolio companies could cause a loss {o the Partnership as a result of
those companies being unable to meet their loan stock obligations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors’ remuneration have been borne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expendiiure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incusred by the Genetal Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financial statemenis. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other receivables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 72,244 252,311
72,244 252,311

7 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Due to paralle! funds 1 2,870
Other payahles 77 77
78 2,947
KEY CAPITAL
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued})

8 Financial assets held af fair value through profit or icss
Shares Loan Stock Total
£ £ £
Cost ‘
As at 1 May 2018 329,940 2,265,688 2,595,628
Disposals {80,606) {1,430,465) {1,511,071)
Restructuring * - 489,377 488,377
As at 30 April 2019 249,334 1,324,600 1,573,934
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 2,717,542 42,3486 2,759,888
Change for the year {2,158,323) - {2,159,323)
As at 30 April 2019 558,219 42 346 600,565
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 B07.,653 1,366,946 2,174,499
As at 30 Aprii 2018 3,047,482 2,308,034 5,355,616

* The Partnership has sold its loan note in EarthStream Global Limited ("ESG”) to CloudStream Global as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthermors, CloudStream Global has changed its name to TechStream Group
Holdings Limited on 15 August 2018, Also, the Partnership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of
loan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018,

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

+ level 1: Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active marksts for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 Aprit 2018 under this category.

» Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

« level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

The Partnership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £2,174,499 (30 April 2018: £5,355,516)
were categorised under this category.

i KEY CAPITAL
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East Riding of Yorkshire Acting as Administering Authority of East Riding Pension Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Investment Undertakings
Business Number of Yo
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership
Siamo Azzuri Limited (t/a Templins) Provision of recruitment
Templine (4% Secured Loan Notes) | UK services to the logistics N/A N/A
sacfor
Nevilie Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and
£1*A' Ordinary Shares I UK instatlation of baspoke 31 0.01%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 furniture
Wells Producer of specialist
1p 'A' Ordinary Shares v UK additive masterbatch 1,220,722 8.58%
10% Subordinated ‘A’ Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds
Techstream Recruitment for the oil
Techstream Group Holdings Limited {(Loan notes) Wi UK and gas and mining N/A N/A
sactors
Hallam .
£1 Preferred Crdinary Shares Vi UK Recruitment for the 42,341 4.19%

10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021 medical sector

* Represents the shareholding of investors opting in the rollover following the sale of Neville Johnson in May 2014.

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain respansibifities. The Manager is entitled to a fee from the General Partner
for its services. Michasl Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage, Philip Duguenoy and James Hall are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Pariner received £30,144 (30 April 2018: £41,488) as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.

11 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners {General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

12 Provision for Carried Interest

If the investment portfolio were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2019,
there would be a reatlocation of Income between Key Capital Partners {Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £18,538 (30 April 2018: £53,028)
for Key Capital Partners Fund 1, £104,2056 (30 Aprit 2018: £94,669) for Key Capital Partners Fund 1V, £1,556 (30 April
2018: £8,241) for Key Capital Pariners Fund V and £126,743 {30 April 2018: £311,122) for Key Capital Partners Fund
VIl being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement, of the carried
interest due to Key Capital Partners {Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April 2019.
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprif 2019

. Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2018 30 April 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 174 512
Interest income 109,120 146,493
109,294 147,005

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 8 (1,564,322) 1,451,197
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 1,994,022 {719,6086)
Profit for the financial year 538,994 878,596

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements,

KC : KEY CAPITAL
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Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019
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Welverhampton City Couneil Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager
Key Capitat Partners (General Partner) Limited (the “General Pariner”) has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP (the

"Manager”) to manage the Parinership. The Manager presents the financial statements for Wolverhampton City
Council Fund KCP1 LP {the *Partnership™) for the year ended 30 April 2018,

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “small” under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Parner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Parinership's auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audi{ information and to establish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as apptied t¢ Qualifying Parnerships.

Signed on behaif of the Manager

OW <ol

Owen Trotter
Designated Memher

é;/d? / 2019
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial stalements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law as applied to gqualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations") requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financiat year. Under that law,
the General Parner has prepared the Partnership’s financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Nofe 2 and Note 3 to the financial stalements. Under company law as applied
to qualifying partnerships, the General Pariner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or [oss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is reqguired to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent,

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreemant, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s fransactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Parinership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Parinership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP (the “Partnership”) for the
year ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Changes n Net Assets Atiributable to Pariners and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

{n our opinion the Financial Statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Parthership’s affairs as at 30 April 2018 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

+« have been prepared in accordance with the requiraments of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to
qualifying parinerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We cenducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable [aw.
Qur responsibililies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are reievant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilfed our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:

+ the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
stataments is not appropriate; or

« the General Partner has not disclosed in the financlal statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least tweive months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the infermation included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The General Partner is rasponsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expiicitly stated in our report, we
de not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiatly
inconsistent with the financial statements or our khowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
ta determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thers is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
QOpinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In olir opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
« the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable 'egal requirements.

KC t KEY CAPITAL
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Woilverhampton City Councii Fund KCP1 LP {continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006, as applied
to qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

s the Parinership was not entitled to take advantage of the small companies' exemption, as applied o
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Generat Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability fo
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn
basis of accounting unless the General Partner either intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audltor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibiliies for the audit of the financial statemenis is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This repott is made solely to the Partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership’s members as a bady, for our audit work, for this repon, or for the opinions we have
formed.

"
lan Cowan {Senier Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus
Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf
London E14 4HD

August 2019
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Wolverhampton City Councit Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprii 2019

Statement of Fihancial Position

Non-current assets
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabitities
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital coniribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained earnings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

As at As at

30 Aprll 2019 30 Aprii 2018
£ £

2,018,281 4.346,623
49,181 199,273

281 3,400

49,442 202,673

(78) (3,263)

49,364 199,410
2,065,645 4,546,033
140 140
8,018,766 8,018,766
(15,264,935) {12,245,553)
9,311,574 8,772 680
2,065,645 4,546,033

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102,

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on é’/ey 2019.

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

@/&M (/7&7/ e

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12173
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprit 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

Wolverhampton Gity Council Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited Parinership (the “Parinership”) established in England under
the Limited Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 1 May 2007.

The principal purpose of the Partnership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
fo providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 1 May 2007 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Partnership have been sold or liquidated uniess extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
1 May 2007.

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA”).
As a conseguence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authaority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdam
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Repubiic of lreland” (“FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2008 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and axercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Suminary of significant accountlng policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below. These
policies have been consistentily applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have baen applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in refation to the Partnership's financial statements:

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prapared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revatuation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling ("GBP”, “£"), which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. it also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Parinership’s accounting policies. The areas inveolving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

{(b) Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the level of commitments
of sach Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Parinership up to
the amount committed. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments to meet future
obligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capitat commitments to fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Partnership has adequate
resources o continue in operational existence for the foreseeabie future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

KCP I RR.F RS page 11



Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3

(©

(d)

(e)

0

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Pariner is entitfed to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfali shall be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annusi Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Partnership 1s not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Partner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instrurnents.
(i} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
transaclion price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest,

Other basic financial assets, including investments In equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the fransaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive thcome.

Financiat assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
seltled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or {c} control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilateralty
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial iiabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction prics,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers, Creditors are ciassified as current labilities if payment is due within one year or less. if
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recagnised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liabilily is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

- KEY CAPITAL
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
{(9) Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost In the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

!Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and cther factors,
including expeciations of future events that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, thefr fair value is determined using valuation fechnigues common in the privale equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable fransactions. The inputs in the earnings mulfiples models include
observable data, such as earnings multiples of comparable companies to the relevant partiolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the porfolio company. Changes in assumptions about these faclors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
petiodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the portfolio companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
thase companies being unable to meet their loan stock obligations, either in part orin full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors’ remuneration have been borme by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acqguisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments. ‘
Expenditure incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Pricrity Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive income.

6 Trade and other receivables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 49,161 199,273
49,161 199,273

7 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 Aprit 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Due to parallel funds 1 1,923
Due to limited partners - 1,263
Other payables 77 77
78 3,263
KC P KEY CARITAL 13
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Financiat assets held at falr value through profit or [oss
Shares Loan Stock Total
£ £ £

Cost
As at 1 May 2018 290,353 1,895,962 2,186,315
Disposals {54,983) (1,200,414) {1,2565,397)
Restructuring * - 489,377 488,377
As at 30 April 2019 235,370 1,184,925 1,420,295
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 2,131,927 28,381 2,160,308
Change for the year (1,564,322) - (1,564,322)
As at 30 Aprit 2019 567 605 28,381 595,986
Fair Valua

As at 30 April 2019 802,875 1,213,306 2,018,281
As at 30 April 2018 2,422,280 1,824,343 4,346,623

¥ The Partnership has sold its loan note in EarthStream Global Limited ("ESG") to CloudStream Global as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthermore, CloudStrsam Global has changed its name to TechSfream Group
Holdings Limited on 15 August 2018. Also, the Parinership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of
loan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investiments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

s  Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

« Llevel 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

s level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

The Partnership's investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £2,016,281 (30 April 2018: £4,346,623)
were categorised under this category.
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Wolverhampton City Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership
Siarmo Azzuri Limited (t/a Templine} Provision of recruitment
Templine (4% Secured Loan Naotes) I UK sarvices o the logistics N/A N/A
sector
Neville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and
£1'A Ordinary Shares | UK installation of bespoke 31 0.01%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 furniture
Wells Producer of specialist
1p 'A’ Ordinary Shares Y UK additive masterbatch 1,220,722 8.58%
10% Subordinated ‘A" Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds
Techstream Recruitment for the oil
Techstream Group Holdings Limited (Loan notes} VI UK and gas and mining N/A N/A
sectors
Hallam .
£1 Preferrad Ordinary Shares VIl UK Recruitment for the 28,376 2.81%

medical sector
10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021

* Represents the shareholding of investors opting in the rollover following the sale of Nevilie Johnson in May 2014.

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered inte a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entitled to a fee from the General Pariner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duquenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Partnier received £27,658 (30 April 2018: £39,208) as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.

11 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a {imited liabfity partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controliing party.

12 Provision for Carried Interest

If the invastment pertfollo were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statemenis at 30 April 2013,
there wouid be a reallocation of Income between Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £18,538 (30 April 2018: £53,028)
for Key Capital Partners Fund 1, £104,205 (30 Aprit 2018: £94,669) for Key Capital Partners Fund 1V, £1,556 (30 April
2018: £8,241) for Key Capital Partners Fund V and £84,938 (30 April 2018: £208,502) for Key Capital Partners Fund
Vil being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Parinership Agreement, of the carried
interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April 2019.
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited (the “General Partner”) has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP {the
‘Manager”) to manage the Partnership. The Manager presents the financial statements for The Cayzer Trust
Company Limited Fund KGP1 LP {the "Partnership™) for the year ended 30 April 2018,

Sfrategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “smafl” under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 {Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and il is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Partnership’s auditor is unaware and that they have taken ali steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any refevant audit information and to estabiish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to smali companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2C06, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

(o TGl (o

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

é/(/ 2018
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Pariner is responsible for prepating the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company faw as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations”) requires the General Partner {o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Partnership's financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
to qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless it is safisfied that
they give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enabie it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Repert and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP {the "Partnership®)
far the year ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Aftributabfe to Partners and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has heen
applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

tn our opinion the Financial Statements:

« give atrue and fair view of the state of the Parinership's affairs as at 30 Aprit 2018 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generafly Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibifities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us 10 report to
you where:

¢ the General Partner's use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

« the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified materiai uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’'s ability fo continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at lsast twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
staternents does not cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise expiicitly stated in our repory, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financlal statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the Repert of the Manager for the financial year for which the financiat statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
+ the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC : KEY CAPITAL
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Repart to the Members of The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
(continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008, as applied
to qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+« the Parinership was not enfitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Respoensibilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibifities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partiner is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the General Parther either intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but fo do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our epinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’'s website at: www.frc.org. ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Parinership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to gqualifying partnerships by The
Parinerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership's members those matiers we are required to state o them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership’s members as a body, for our audit wortk, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

T et

lan Cowan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Littiejohn LLP . 1 Westferry Circus

Statutory Auditor ) Canary Wharf

é London E14 4HD
August 2019
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 54 157
Interest income 28,281 40,581
28,335 40,738

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 8 (469,288) 464,274
Realised gain / {Joss} on investments 584,436 (268,853)
Profit for the financial year 143,483 235,159

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has ne comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC . KEY CAPITAL
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Currant Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital contribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained earnings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

Notes

As at As at

30 April 2018 30 April 2018
£ £

517,770 1,212,808
13,687 53,027

110 978

13,797 54,005
29) (920)
13,768 53,085
531,638 1,265,883

65 85
2,205,785 2,205,785
(3,807,747) {2,928,909)
2,133,435 1,988,952
531,538 1,265,883

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 tc 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on é‘ /q/ / 2019,

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

Owene TeT

Owen Trotter
Designated Membher

Partnership Number LP12170
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Background and Parinership Agreement

The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1{ LP is a Limited Partnership (the “Partnership”) established in
England under the Limited Parinerships Act 1807, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the "Agreement”) dated 1
May 2007,

The principal purpose of the Partnership is to carry on the business of investing in gualifying companigs, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 1 May 2007 and will continue in existence uniil all investments of the
Parinership have been sold or liquidated unless extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
1 May 2007. .

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA"}.
As a consequence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of refand” (“FRS 102") and the Companies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The Parnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the pericd, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnership's financial statements:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
madified by the revaluation of investments held at fair vaiue through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling (“GBP”, “£"), which is also the Partnership's functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. it also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
tha Partnership’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b) Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount commitied. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments to meet future
abligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital comimnitinents to fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Patiner has a reasonable expectation that the Partnership has adequate

resources to continue in cperational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concem basis in preparing the financial statements.
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financlal Statements (continued)

3

{©

(@)

{e)

®

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits assoclated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net fncome, Nef Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net lncome, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agresment. The General Pariner is entitied to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shail be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising fiom the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Parinership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Partner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has c;hosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
() Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing fransaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the fransaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the confractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
seltled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or (¢} control of the asset has been transferred to ancother party who has the practical ahbility to unilaterally
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial liebilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipis discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business frorn suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. if
net, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued}
(g} Fair value of investments

investments are carried in fhe Statement of Financial Pasificn at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in valus. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with Internationa!l Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evalualed and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation fechniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the earnings muitiples medels include
observable data, such as earnings multiples of comparable companies to the relevant portfolio company, and
uncbservable data, such as forecast earnings for the portfolio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reporied fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the portfolio companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
those companies being unable to meet their loan stock obfigations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors’ remuneration have been borne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund, Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incurred by the General Pariner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financlal statements. These amounts are recoverad by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other receivables
As at As at
30 April 2012 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 13,687 53,027
13,687 £3,027

7 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 Aprit 2018
£ £
Due to parallsl funds - 538
Due te limited partners - 353
Other payables 29 29
29 920
KCFJ | KEY CAPITAL 3
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annuai Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Financial assefs held at fair value through profit or loss
Shares Loan Stock Total
£ £ £
Cost
As at 1 May 2018 74,755 519,492 594,247
Disposals (15,083} (337,060) (352,123)
Resfructuring * - 126,373 126,373
As at 30 April 2019 59,692 308,805 368,497
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 610,621 7,940 618,561
Change for the year (469,288) - {469,288)
As at 30 April 2019 141,333 7,040 149,273
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 201,025 316,745 517,770
As at 30 April 2018 685,376 527,432 1,212,808

* The Partnership has sold its loan note in EarthStream Global Limited ("ESG") to CloudSiream Giobal as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthermore, CloudStream Global has changed its name to TechStream Group
Holdings Limited on 15 August 2018. Also, the Parinership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of
foan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair

value through profit or loss:
+ Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) markef prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2018 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

+ level 2: Valualion technigques for which the lawest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 Aprit 2018 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

= level 3: Valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

The Partnership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £5617,770 (30 April 2018: £1,212,808) were

categorised under this category.
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The Cayzer Trust Company Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

g Investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership

Siamo Azzuri Limited (tfa Templine) Provision of recruitment

Templine (4% Secured Loan Notes) | UK services to the logistics N/A N/A
sector

Naville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and

£1 'A' Ordinary Shares ] UK instatlation of bespoke 12 0.00%

10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 furniture

Wells Producer of specialist

1p ‘A’ Ordinary Shares v UK additive masterbatch 305,180 2.15%

10% Subordinated ‘A’ Loan Stack - 2041 and compounds

Techsiream Recruitment for the oil

Techstream Group Holdings Limited (Loan notes) Vi UK and gas and mining N/A N/A
sectors

Haliam

. Recruitment for the
£1 Preferred Ordinary Shares Vil UK medical sector 7,939 0.79%

10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021
* Represents the shareholding of investors opting in the rollover following the sale of Naville Johnson in May 2014.

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has enfered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entilled to a fee from the Genertal Partner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duquenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Partner received £7,065 (30 April 2018: £10,372) as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.

11 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Parthership is Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a fimited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controfling party.

12 Provision for Carried Interest

if the investment porifolio were to be fully realised at the vaiues included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2018,
there would be a reallocation of Income between Key Capital Partners {Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This wouid resllocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £6,952 (30 April 2018: £19,886)
for Key Capital Partners Fund |, £26,051 (30 April 2018: £23,667) for Key Capital Partners Fund IV, £195 (30 April
2018: £1,030) for Key Capital Partners Fund V and £23,764 (30 Aprit 20-18: £58,335) for Key Capital Partners Fund
Vil being an estimate, calcuiated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement, of the carried
interest due to Key Capitai Partners (Carried Interest) LL.P at 30 April 2019.

| KEY CAPITAL
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited (the “General Partner”) has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP (the
*Manager”) {o manage the Partnership. The Manager presents the financial statements for Metropolitan Borough of
Wirral Fund KCP1 LP (the “Partnership™) for the ysar ended 30 April 2018,

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as "small” under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2008 (Strategic Report and
Directors' Report) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Parinerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Partnership's auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ocught have taken in order to
make themsalves aware of any relevant audit information and te establish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager
Lhen Gt

Owen Trotter
Desighated Member

6/ % 2019
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Statement of General Parfner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Gompany law as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations”) requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Partnership’s financial statements in accordance with the slatement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company [aw, as applied
to qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless it is safisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. in preparing these financial statements, the Genera! Partner is required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

« state whether applicabte United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership wilt continue in businaess.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying parinerships by the Reguiations. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable sleps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

KC P l EEYR ?ﬁfgg“g page §



Metropolitan Borough of Wirrai Fund KCP1 LP _
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Cpinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Metropolitan Borough of Wirrat Fund KCP1 LP (the “Partnership”) for
the year ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generalty Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our apinion the Financial Statements:

+ give a trus and fair view of the state of the Partnership's affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
QOur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the [SAs (UK} require us to report to
you where:

+ the General Partner's use of the going concem hasis of accounting in the preparation of the financiat
statements is not appropriate; or

» the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information incltuded in the annuat report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon, The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. in connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the finandal statements or our knowiedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to defermine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or 2 material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinicns on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, hased on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
» the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC  KEY CAPITAL
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP4 LP .
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report fo the Members of Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its enviranment obtained in the course of the
sudit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the Companies Act 2006, as applied
to qualifying partnerships requires us to report fo you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or refurns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ the Parinership was not entifled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strafegic Report.

Responsibilitles of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial stalements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Pariner is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the General Partner either intends to liquidaie the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilitles for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 18As (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our raport

This report is made solely to the Partnership’s members, as a hody, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied fo qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’s members those maiters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Parinership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

,.—-—"."-—‘
lan Cowan {Senior Statutory Auditor}
For and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus
Stalutory Auditor Canary Wharf

London E14 4HD
August 2019
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Arnual Repert and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Notes ’ £ £

Bank interest 367 406
Interest income 232,848 250,377
233,215 250,783

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 8 (3,880,559) 2,031,598
Reatised gain / (loss) on investments 5,113,925 {455,836)
Profit for the financial year 1,466,581 1,826,545

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC P KEY CARITAL
CPARTNERS
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabllitles
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital confribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained eamings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

As at As at

30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £

2,755,528 8,396,610
145,524 420,694

168 6,004

148,692 426,698
(47 (5,921)

145,645 420,777
2,901,173 8,817,387
80 80
10,552,825 10,552,825
(24,4186,855) {17,034,060)
16,765,123 15,208,642
2,901,173 8,817,387

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on g / g 2018

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

(lven “Fedle”

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Parinership Number LP12172

KCP I55:5VERS
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
1 Background and Partnership Agreement

Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited Partnership (the “Partnership®), established in England
under the Limited Parinerships Act 1907, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the "Agreement”) dated 1 May 2007.

The principal purpose of the Partnership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 1 May 2007 and will continue in existence until all investiments of the
Partnership have been sold or liquidated unless extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
1 May 2007.

The Manager is an authorised person under the Unifed Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA"}.
As a consequence, the Manager is permitted to manage and opetate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager Is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in campliance with the Agresment, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entifies requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships {Accounts) Regutations 2008.

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Staternent of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financiat statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopied
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnership's financial statements:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling ("GBP", “£"), which is aiso the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Partnership’s accouniing policias. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

{(p) Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the leval of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per tha Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments to mesf future
obligations, payment of Prigrity Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments ta fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Partnership has adequate

resources to continue in operationat existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

3

{c)

G

(e)

it

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Pariner is entitled to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shail be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 8 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Partnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Parner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
() Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
fransaction price, unless the arrangement constitules a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of intarest.

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normaliy the transaction price. Such assels are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b) substantially alt the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or () control of the asset has been {ransferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liabiiity is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires,

KC | KEY CAPITAL.
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued}
3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
(g) Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment n value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelinas. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to ba reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the earnings multiples models include
observable data, such as eamings muitiples of comparable companies to the relevant portfolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the porifofio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the porifolio companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
those companies being unable to mest their loan stock obligations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, inciuding auditors’ remuneration have been borne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditura incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financlal statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profil Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other receivables

As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 145 524 420,694
145,524 420,694

7 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 Aprii 2018
£ £
[Due to parallel funds - 5,874
Other payables 47 47
A7 5,921

KEY CAPITAL,
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Financlal assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Shares Loan Stock Total

£ £ £

Cost
As at 1 May 2018 456,688 3,444,260 3,900,948
Disposals (163,032) (2,165,989) (2,329,021)
Restructuring * - 568,498 568,498
As at 30 April 2018 293,856 1,846,769 2,140,425
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2618 4,408,974 86,688 4,495,662
Change for the year (3,880,559) - (3,880,559)
As at 30 April 2019 528,415 86,688 615,103
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 822,071 1,933,457 2,755,528
As at 30 April 2018 4,865,662 3,530,948 8,396,610

* The Partnership has sold its loan note In EarthStream Global Limited (“ESG") to CloudStream Global as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthermore, CloudStream Global has changed its name to TechStream Group
Heldings Limited on 15 August 2018. Also, the Partnership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of
loan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2011 8.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

e Level 1: Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

¢« Level 2: Valuation techniques far which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this categoery.

= Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

The Partnership’s investments as at 30 Aptil 2019 amounting to £2,755,528 (30 April 2018: £8,396,610)
were categorised under this category.
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Metropolitan Borough of Wirral Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes ta the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership

Siamo Azzurl Limited (ta Templine) Provision of recruitment

Templine (4% Secured Loan Notes) 1 UK services lo the logistics N/A N/A
segtor

Neville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and

£1 ‘A’ Ordinary Shares ] UK installation of bespoke 15 0.00%

10% Subardinated Loan Stock - 2015 furniture

Wells Praoducer of specialist

1p 'A’ Ordinary Shares v UK additive masterbatch 1,220,722 8.58%

10% Subordinated ‘A’ Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds

Techstream Recruitment for the oil

Techstream Group Holdings Limited {Loan notes) VI UK and gas and mining N/A N/A
sectors

Hallam

i Recruitment for the
£1 Preferred Ordinary Shares Vil UK medical sector 86,678 8.58%

10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021
* Represents the shareholding of investors opting in the rollover following the sale of Neville Johnson in May 2014.

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager s entitied to a fee from the General Pariner
for its services. . James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duquenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Partner received £38,506 (30 April 2018: £53,060} as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts ocutstanding at the year end.

11 Uliimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Patiners {General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Parthars LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

12 Provision for Carried Interest

If the investment portfolic were to be fully realised at the vaiues included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2019,
there would be a reallocation of Income between Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners {Carried [nterest) LLP Net Income of £8,269 (30 April 2018: £26,514)
for Key Capital Partners Fund |, £104,205 (30 April 2018: £84,669) for Key Capital Partners Fund IV, £2,432 (30 April
2018: £12,877) for Key Capital Partners Fund V and £259,459 (30 April 2018: £636,907) for Key Capitat Partners
Fund Vi being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement, of the
carried interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP af 30 April 2019,

P
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City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2010

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners (General Partnier) Limited (the “General Partner”) has appointed Key Capital Pariners LLP (the
‘Manager”) to manage the Partnership. The Manager presents the financial statemenis for City of Bradford
Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP (the “Partnership™) for the year ended 30 April 2019.

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “small” under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Reporf) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Pariner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Partnership’s auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership's auditor is aware of
such information.

This repott has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2006, as applied to Qualifying Parinerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

0wéu eV 0

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

5/‘g / 2019
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City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 20189

Statement of General Partner’s Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regutations.

Company law as applied fo qualifying partnerships by The Parinerships (Accounis) Regulations 2008 (the
‘Regulations”) requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the Genera) Partner has prepared the Parnership’s financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
to qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the financial statemsnts unless it is salisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner Is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether appiicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

KC P 3 § E\; ?‘P;.EP::TQ IE page 5



City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1
LP

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statemenis of City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP {the
*Partnership”) for the year ended 30 April 2018 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdam Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generaily Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

s give a frue and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applied 1o
gualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirernents that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We balieve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriale o provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the foilowing matters in relation ‘o which the ISAs (UK} require us to report to
you where:

» the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

o the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue fo adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for tssue.

Other information

The ether information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The General Pariner is responsible for the other inforration. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial siatements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identfify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have parformed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
+ the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
+ the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC P * EEA\; ?ﬁqpéTé Ls- page 6



City of Bradford Metropofitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1
LP {continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006, as applied
fo qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you If, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the Partnership was not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsihilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Pariner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermror.

in preparing the financial statements, the General Pariner is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unlass the General Partner either intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternatjive but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high lavel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with [SAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statermnants.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financiat statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
repont,

Use of our report

This report is made solely lo the Partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’'s members those matiers we are required io state to them in an auditor's repart and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

J&W

lan Cowan {Senlor Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Litllejobn LLP 1 Westferry Circus

tatutory Auditor Canary Whart

g London E14 4HD
August 2019
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City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 325 827
Interest income 197,379 256,030
197,704 256,857

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 8 (3,017,838} 2,536,862
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 3,864,614 {1,205,375)
Profit for the financial year 1,044,480 1,588,344

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations. The
Parthership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no
Statement of Other Camprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC : KEY CAFITAL
iPARTNERS page 8



Clty of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financia! Statemetits for year ended 30 April 2018

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and cther receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payabies

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital confribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained earnings

Totai Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

Asg at As at

30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £

3,232,321 7,696,412
98,185 360,470

423 4,196

98,608 364,666
(129) {4,010)

98,479 360,656
3,330,800 8,057,068
140 140
12,830,932 12,830,932
(26,289,504) {20,518,756)
16,789,232 15,744,752
3,330,800 8,057,068

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on ¢ /7 2018.

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

Q,/&’w //# w'ﬁ‘ﬂ/

Owen Trofter
Designhated Member

Partnership Number LP12169

KCP [E5:V 4%
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City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprii 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited Partnership (the *Partnership”) established
in England under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the “Agreement”} dated 1
May 2007.

The principal purpose of the Partnership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 1 May 2007 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Partnership have been sold or liquidated uniess extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
1 May 2007.

The Manager i$ an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA").
As a consequence, the Manager is permitied to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
thelr portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Smali Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2008 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies appfied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnership's financial statements:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern hasis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling ("GBP", “£"), which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial slatements in conformily with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Parinership’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

) Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a fegal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments to meet future
obligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligatians.

After making enquiries, the General Pariner has a reasonable expectation that the Partnership has adsquate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseesable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

KCP I FRRHTERS page 11



City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow 1o the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The aliocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entitled to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance, if the Parinership Income in
any Accounting Period is Insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shall be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shali be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Partnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individuat Pariner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
(i) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, inciuding receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Other basic financial assets, including Investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the confractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or (c) control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i} Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less, If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabiiities are derecognised when the Hability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation Is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

KCP SRS page 12
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City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{g) Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. in subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calcutated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines, Adjustments in the value of investments are refiected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjusiment is made.

4 Critical aceounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair vaiue is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarfly earings mulfiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the eamings multiples models include
observable data, such as earnings multiples of comparable companies fo the relevant portfolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the portfolio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments, The models used 1o determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underslying performance of the portfolic companies could cause a loss to the Parinership as a resuit of
thase companies being unable to meet their loan stock obfigations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditers’ remuneration have been bome by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other receivables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interast recelvable 98,185 350,470
98,185 360,470

7 Trade and other payabiles
As at As at
30 April 2015 30 April 2018
£ £
Due to parallel funds 1 3,882
Other payables 128 128
129 4,010
KEY CAPITAL

KCP PARTHNERS page 13
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City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprit 2019

Notes fo the Financial Statements (continued}

8 Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Shares Loan Stock Total
£ £ £
Cost
As at 1 May 2018 480,430 3,252,678 3,743,108
Disposals (109,734) (2,0356,519) (2,146,253)
Restructuring * - 700,000 700,000
As at 30 April 2019 380,696 1,916,159 2,206,855
Change In Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 3,896,031 57,273 3,953,304
Change for the year (3,017,838) - (3,017,838)
As at 30 April 2018 878,193 57,273 935,466
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 1,258,889 1,873,432 3,232,321
As at 30 April 2018 4,386,461 3,308,951 7,686,412

* The Partnership has sold its loan note in EarthStream Global Limited (‘ESG™) to CloudStream Glabal as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthermore, CloudStream Global has changed its name to TechStream Group
Holdings Limited on 15 August 2018. Also, the Partnership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of

loan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan nate as part of its exit an 20 December 2018.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of Its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

¢ Level 1: Quoted {(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

¢+ Level 2: Vajuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this categary.

« level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is uncbservable

The Partnership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £3,232,321 (30 Aprll 2018: £7,696,412)
were categorised under this category.

KC P | KEY caPITAL
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City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued})

9 Investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund @Geography activity Shares Owrnership

Stamo Azzuri Limited (t/a Templine) Provision of recruitment
Templine (4% Secured Loan Notes) [ UK services to the logistics N/A N/A

seclar
Neville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and
£1'A Ordinery Shares | UK installation of bespoke 50 0.01%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 furailure
Wells Producer of speclalist
1p ‘A’ Ordinary Shares v UK additive masterbatch and 1,907,378 13.41%
10% Subordinated 'A' Laan Stock - 2011 compotinds
Techstream Recnuitment for the oil and
Techstream Group Holdings Limited (Loan notes) Vi UK gas and mining sectars NIA N/A
Hallam

) Recruitment for the
£1 Preferred Crdinary Shares Vil UK medical sector 57,267 5687%

10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021
* Represants the shareholding of investors opting in the roliover following the sale of Neville Johnson in May 2014,

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entitled fo a fee from the General Pariner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duquency are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP, The General Partner received £46,200 (30 April 2018: £64,000) as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.

1 Ultimate Controliing Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Parfners LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

12 Provision for Carried Interest

If the investment portfolio were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 20189,
there would be a reallocation of Income between Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £30,125 (30 April 2018: £86,171)
for Key Capital Pariners Fund |, £162,820 (30 April 2018: £147,920) for Key Capital Partners Fund 1V, £2,475 (30
April 2018: £13,109) for Key Capital Partners Fund V and £171,421 (30 April 2018: £420,795) for Key Capital
Partners Fund VI] being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement,
of the carried interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April 2018.
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innotech {nvestments Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited {the "General Partner") has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP {the
“Manager’) {o manage the Partnership. The Manager presents the financial statements for Innotech Investments
Limited Fund KCP1 LP {the "Partnership”) for the year ended 30 April 2019.

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “small” under Section 4148 of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report} Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Partnership's auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themseives aware of any relevant audit infformation and to establish that the Partnership's auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships,

Signed on behalf of the Manager

(e Tl

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

5/ ¢ 201
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Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Apnil 2019

Statement of General Parfner's Responsibilities in respect of the Fihancial Statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Reporl and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law as applied fo qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regutations”) requires the General Parner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Partnership's financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
o qualifying partnerships, the Generai Partner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfled that
they give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disciosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate fo presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parinership’'s fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

KC P ' "FSEYR(;I‘%PI!_‘TQ lg page 5



Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statementis of Innotech Investments Limited Fund KGP1 LP (the “Partnership”) for the
year ended 30 Aptil 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Aftributabte to Partners and notes to the financial statements,
incfuding a summary of significant accounting policies, The financial reporting frarnework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable iaw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinioh the Financial Statements:

e give a true and fair view of the stale of the Parinership’s affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

+ have been prepared in accerdance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

Basis for oplnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Cur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to praovide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:

* the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

¢ the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statemants any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issus.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the cther information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowiedge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such matefial inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we ara required
o determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statementis or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this
ather information, we are regquired to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
» the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
« the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC : KEY CAPITAL
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Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Innoctech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the fight of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008, as applied
to gualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
fram branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ the Partnership was not entitled to take advantage of the small companies' exemption, as apptlied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the General Pariner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Parner determines is ngcessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the Partnership's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related io going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting uniess the General Partner either intends to liquidate the Parinership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonakly be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further descriplion of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 168 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undeitaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’s members those matlers we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilily to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

/N

lan Cowan {Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus
Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf

é London E14 4HD
August 2019

KC i KEY CAPITAL
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Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 153 767
Interest income 105,095 164,997
105,248 165,764

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 8 (1,137,562) 1,768,027
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 1,399,038 (1,079,411)
Profit for the financial year 366,724 854,380

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations, The
Parinership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, ho

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC 'KEY CAPITAL
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innotech Investments Limited Fund KGP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Financlal assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and cther receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital contribuiion account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained earnings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

As at As at

30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £

2,398,191 4,165,303
26,844 191,148

370 1,864

27,214 193,012

(116) {1,709)
27,098 191,303
2,425,289 4,356,606
100 100
9,888,086 9,868,086
(19,382,969) (17,094,928)
11,930,072 11,563,348
2,425,289 4,356,606

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102,

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on (3 / g’/ 2019,

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

Dt Tl o

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Nurmber LP12410
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Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprii 2019

Notes to the Financlal Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited Parinership (the “Partnership”) established in England
undar the Limited Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited Partnership Agreement {the "Agreement”} dated 30 June
2007,

The principal purpose of the Partnership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of {he Agreement.

The Partnership commencead operations on 30 June 2007 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Parinership have been sold or liguidated unless extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
30 June 2007,

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA”).
As a consequence, the Manager is permilted to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland” (*FRS 102"y and the Companies
Act 2008 as appilied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Reguiations 2008.

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been appiied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnership's financial statements:

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling (“GBP”, "£"), which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It aiso requires the General Partner to exgrcise its judgement in the process of applying

+ the Partnarship’s accounting pdlicies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disciosed in Note 4.

{b) Going concern

The Partrership meets its working capitai requirements through capital calis based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitmeni per the Agreement fo pay capita! into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments to meet future
obligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Parinership has adequate
resources fo confinue in operational existence for the foreseeabie fulure. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
gaing concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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innotech investments Limited Fund KCP1LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Apri{ 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3

{©

(d)

()

®

Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises reveriue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Met Losses and Realised Capital Gaing and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entitled to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shall be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Parthership assets, falling which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Parinership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibiiity of each individual Partner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
{) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction Is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subseqguently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Incorne.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
seifled, or (b) substantially ail the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are fransferred to another
party or {¢) controt of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payabies, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financiaf liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation s
discharged, cancelled or expires.

KC  KEY CAPITAL page 12
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Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the repotting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflacted in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investmenis recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair vaiue is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily eamings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the earnings multiples models include
observable data, such as earnings multiples of comparable companies to the relevant portfolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the porifolio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the portfolic companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
those companies being unable to meet their loan stock obligations, sither in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors' remuneration have been borne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund, Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other recelvables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 26,844 191,148
26,844 191,148

7 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 Aprii 2018 30 April 2018
£ £
Due to parallel funds 1 963
Due to limited partners - 631
Other pavyables 115 115
116 1,709
| KEY CAPITAL
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innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Financial assets held at falr value through profit or loss

Shares Lean Stock Total

£ £ £

Cost
As at 1 May 2018 355,090 1,787,978 2,143 069
Additions - - -
Disposals {30,415) (1,028,439) {1,058,854)
Restructuring * - 429,304 429,304
As at 30 April 2018 324,675 1,188,844 1,513,519
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 2,008,045 14,189 2,022,234
Change for the year (1,137,562) - (1,137,562)
As at 30 April 2019 870,483 14,188 884,672
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2018 1,195,158 1,203,033 2,398,191
As at 30 Aprii 2018 2,363,135 1,802,168 4,165,303

* The Partnership has sold its loan note in EarthStream Global Limited (“ESG”) to CloudStream Global as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthermore, CloudStream Global has changed its hame to TechStream Group
Holdings Limited on 15 August 2018, Aiso, the Partnership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of

loan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018.

The Parnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

« [Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2018 and 30 Aprit 2018 under this category.

* Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

¢+ Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Partnership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £2,398,191 (30 April 2018; £4,165,303) were
categorised under this category.

KCP I FRRTV RS page 14



Innotech Investments Limited Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership
Slamo Azzuri Limited (ta Templine) Provision of recruitment
Templine (4% Secured Loan Notes) UK services fo the logisfics NZA N/A
seclor
Nevllle Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and
£1 A’ Ordinary Shares ] UK insfallation of bespoke 4B 0.01%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 furniture
Wells Producer of specialist
1p A’ Ordinary Shares [\ UK additive masterbatch 1,831,083 12.87%
10% Subordinated ‘A’ Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds
Techstream Recruitment for the oil
Techstream Group Holdings Limited (Loan nates) Vi UK and gas and mining N/A N/A
sectors
Hallam Recruitment for th
£1 Preferred Ordinary Shares Vil UK ° 14,188 1.40%

. medical sector
10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021

* Represents the sharehoiding of mvestors opling in the rollover following the sale of Nevllle Johnson in May 2014.

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed cerfain responsibilities. The Manager is entitied to a fee from the General Partner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duquenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Partner received £36,437 (30 April 2018: £47,263) as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.

1 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners {Generat Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited liability partnership incarporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

12 Provision for Carried Inferest

if the investment portfolio were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2019,
there would be g reallocation of Income between Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £27,808 (30 April 2018: £79,542)
for Key Capital Partners Fund 1, £156,307 {30 April 2018: £142,003) for Key Capital Parners Fund IV, £2,334 (30
April 2018: £12,362) for Key Capital Partners Fund V and £42,469 (30 April 2018: £104,251) for Key Capital Pariners
Fund VIi being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement, of the
carried interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April 20189.
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Moulton Goodles Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report-and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager
Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited (the “General Pariner”) has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP (the

"Manager’) to manage the Partnership. The Manager presenis the financial statements for Moulton Goodies Fund
KCP1 LP (the "Partnership”) for the year ended 30 April 2018,

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “smalli” under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors
The General Paitner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of

which the Parthership’s auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership's auditor is aware of

such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

0&1/&% ///M g

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

ﬁ/gv 2019
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Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financiat Statements for year ended 30 Aprif 2019

Statement of General Partner’s Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Pariner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
appficable law and regulations.

Company law as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
"Regulations™) reguires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Parthership’s financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 o the financial siatements. Under company faw, as applied
io qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial stafements, the General Partner is required to:

+ select sullable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accouniing estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have baen followsd, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unlass it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Pariner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parnership’s transactions and disclose wilh reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnarships by the Regulations. The General Pariner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP (the "Partnarship”) for the year ended
30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive (ncome, the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Aftributable to Partners and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounling policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

+ give a frue and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs-as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

+» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

Basis for opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our repoit. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK} require us to report to
you where:

+ the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

+ the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concarn basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financlal statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion an the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our rasponsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have petformed, we conciude that there is a material misstaterment of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC : KEY CAPITAL
"PARTNERS page 6



Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its enwvironment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified materiaf misstatements in the Repott of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008, as applied
to qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinian:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and refurns; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audft; or
the Partnership was not entitled to fake advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied o
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the prepasation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Pariner is responsible for assessing the Partnership's ability o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless the General Partner aither intends to liguidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with [SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ettor
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic dacisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Councit's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Usge of our report

This report is made solely to the Partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Parinership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008, Our sudit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

p—
lan Cowan (Senjor Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus

Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf
' London E14 4HD

é) August 2019
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Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Bank interest

Interest income

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments
Realised gain / {loss) on investments

Profit for the financial year

Year ended

Year ended
30 Aprii 2018 30 April 2018
£ £
152 164
100,308 108,543
100,460 108,707
(1,695,301) 845,268
2,098,010 (179,903}
601,169 774,072

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, ho

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC FKEY CAPITAL
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Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabllities
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets aftributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital contribufion account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained earnings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

As at As at

30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
1,211,083 3,540,868
59,571 180,037

90 4,041

59,661 184,078

(19) (3.989)

59,642 180,089
1,270,705 3,720,955
50 50
4,033,666 4,033,666
(8,742,175} (5,680,758)
5,979,164 5,377,995
4,270,705 3,720,955

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on Q/ Q 2019.

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

o T v

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12174

KCP ERRFERS
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Moulton Goadies Fund KCP1LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited Partnership (the “Partnership”), established in England under the
Limited Partnerships Act 1807, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (ihe "Agreement”) dated 1 May 2007.

The principal purpose of the Parinership is to carry on the busingss of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 1 May 2007 and will confinue in existence until all invesiments of the
Partnership have been sold or liquidated unless extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
1 May 2007.

The Manager is an authorised perscn under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (‘FSMA”).
As a consequence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority,

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been preparad in compliance with the Agreament, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying parinerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consisfently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnership's financial statements:

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
madified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterding ("GBP”, "£", which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparstion of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner (o exercise its judgement in the pracess of applying
the Partnership's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant fo the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b} Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Parthers have a legal commifment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnarship up to
the amount committed. The Parinership has adequate remaining capital commitments to meet future
obiigations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses, Any follow on invesiments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those fuiure obligations.

After making enquiries, the Ganeral Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Partnership has adequate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concarn basis in preparing the financial statements.

P KEY CAPITAL.
KC 'PARTNERS page 11



Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 L.P
Anfwal Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprit 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued}
3 Summary of slgnificant accounting policies {continued)
{¢) Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
ecanomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
(d) Allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Lesses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entitled to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Pariners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance, f the Parinership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficlent to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shall be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

(¢) Taxation

The Parinership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has heen made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibifity of each individual Pariner.

{fy Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
{} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
fransaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at & market rate of interest.

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assefs are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b} substantizlly all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or {c) contro! of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unitaterally
sell the asset to an unrelated third party withaut imposing additional restrictions.

{fi}y Financial liabiiities

Basic financial liabiliies, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the futura receipts discounted at a market rate of interest,

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. if
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the iiability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

: KEY CAPITAL
KC "PARTNERS page 12



Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprit 2019

Notes fo the Financial Statements {continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{g) Fair value of invesiments

[nvestments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are hased on historical experience and other factars,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings muitiples and recent comparable transactions, The inputs in the earnings multiples modeis inciude
observable data, such as earnings multiples of comparabie companies to the relevant portfolic company, and
unchservable data, such as forecast earings for the porifolio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine falr values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the portfolio companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
these companies being unable to meet their loan stock obligations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expanses for the year, including auditors' remuneration have been bormne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financiaf statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partnier through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other raceivahles
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 59,571 180,037
59,571 180,037

7 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 April 2018 30 April 2018
£ £
Due to parallel funds - 2,397
Due to limited partners - 1,673
Other payables 19 19
19 3,989
r KEY CAPITAL
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Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1i LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {(continued)

8 Financial asseats held at fair value through profit or loss
Shares Loan Stock Total
£ £ £
Cost
As at 1 May 2018 205,426 1,435,204 1,640,630
Disposals (66,201) (866,838} (933,037}
Restructuring * - 198,535 198,635
As at 30 Aprii 2019 139,225 766,903 906,128
Change in Fair Value
Ag at 1 May 2018 1,864,874 35,362 1,800,236
Change for the year (1,5695,301) - (1,585,301}
As at 30 Aprii 2019 269,573 35,362 304,935
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 408,798 802,265 1,211,063
As at 30 April 2018 2,070,300 1,470,668 3,540,866

* The Partnership has sold its loan note in EarthStream Global Limited (“ESG™) to CloudStream Global as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthermare, CloudStream Global has changed its name fo TechStream Group
Holdings Limited on 15 August 2018. Also, the Partnership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of
loan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan note as part of its exit on 20 Decermber 2018.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investiments which are measured at fair

valye through profit or loss:

+ |evel 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 Aprit 2018 under this category.

+ level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

o Level 3: Valuation technigques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value

measurement |5 unobservable

The Partnership's investments as at 30 April 2018 amounting to £1,211,063 (30 April 2018: £3,540,866)

were categorised under this category.

KC KEY CAPITAL
"PARTNERS
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Moulton Goodies Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

9 Investment Undeartakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership

Siamo Azzuri Limited (t/a Templine) Provision of recruitment

Templins (4% Secured Loan Notes) ! UK services to the logistics NIA N/A
sector

Neville Johnson Holdings Limited = Manufacture and

£1 A’ Ordinaty Shares f UK instaflation of baspoke 386 0.08%

10% Subordinated Loan Stack - 2015 furniture

Wells Producer of specialist

1p 'A’ Ordinary Shares ' UK additive masterbatch 610,361 4.28%

10% Subordinated *A' Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds

Techstream Raecrultment for the oil

Techstream Group Holdings Limited (Loan notes} VI UK and gas and mining NIA NiA
sactors

Hallam

. Recruitment for the
£1 Preferred QOrdinary Shares VH UK medical sector 35,358 3.50%

10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021
* Represents the shareholding of investors opting in the rollover following the sale of Neville Johnson in May 2014.

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Parfner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entitied o a fee from the General Partner
for its services. Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage, Philip Duquenoy and James Hall are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Partner received £15,713 {30 April 2018: £19,604) as a Priority
Profit Share and thera were no amounts cutstanding at the year end.

11 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controiling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited liability parthership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

12 Provision for Carried Interest

If the investment portfolio were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2019,
there would be a reallocation of Income between Key Capital Partners (Carrled interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £5,577 (30 April 2018; £15,241)
for Key Capital Partners Fund i, £52,102 (30 April 2018: £47,334) for Key Capital Partners Fund [V, £778 (30 April
2018: £4,121) for Key Capital Partners Fund V and £105,841 (30 April 2018: £259,812) for Key Capital Partners Fund
V!l being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement, of the carried
interest dus to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest} LLLP at 30 April 2018.

KC I KEY CAPITAL.

'PARTNERS page 15



FREEE SR

KCP

South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP

ANNUAL REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2019

THESE PARTNERSHIP
ACCOUNTS FORM PART
OF THE ACCOUNTS
OF COMPANY
No.05696941

*ARDBYLWP*
A20 05/09/2019 #238
COMPANIES HOUSE



South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

CONTENTS Page
Partnership Information 3
Report of the Manager 4
Statement of General Partner's Responsibliities in respect of the Financial Statements 5
Independent Auditor's Report 6-7
Statement of Comprehensive Income 8
Statement of Financial Position 9
Statement of Changes [n Net Assets Attributable to Partners 10
Notes to the Financial Statements 1115

KC [t KEY CAPRITAL
"PARTNERS page 2



South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners (General Partrier) Limited {the “General Partner”) has appointed Key Capital Partnars LLP (the
“Manager”) o manage the Partnership. The Manager prasents the financial statements for South Yorkshire Pension
Autharity Fund KCP1 LP (the "Partnership™) for the year ended 30 April 2019.

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as "small” under Section 414B of The Companies Act 2008 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report} Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Fartner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no refevant audit information of
which the Partnership’s auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they cught have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership’s audifor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

(e Aol

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

&7 e
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner’s Responsibilities In respect of the Financial Statements

The General Panner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Gompany law as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
*Regulations") requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Partnership's financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Nate 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
fo qualifying partnerships, the General Pariner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership wilt continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parinership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Pariner is also rasponsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reascnable steps far the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP (the "Partnership”)
for the year ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Aitributable to Partners and notes to the financial
staternents, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financiai reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicabie law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice),

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Pannership’s affairs as at 30 Aprif 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generaily Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to
quaiifying partnerships by The Partnerships {(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basls for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audiling (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financlal statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilfed our other ethical responsibiiities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to teport to
you where:

+« the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

+ the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at ieast twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Otner information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financia!
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitiy stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statemants,
our responsibility is to read the other infermation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financiai statements or our Xnowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
o determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other infoermation, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions an other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;
+ the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial stalements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

KC . KEY CAPITAL :
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

independent Auditor's Report tc the Members of South Yerkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
(continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have nof idenfified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relafion to which the Companies Act 20086, as applied
to qualifying partnerships requires us to report to you i, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

=« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the Partnership was nct entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying parinerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the sxemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statemenis and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Pariner defermines is necessary to enabie the preparafion of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Pariner js responsible for assessing the Parinership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the General Pariner elther intends to liguidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial siatements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered materiat if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibiiities for the audit of the financlal statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.fre org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parthership’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Parthiership
Agreament and Chapter 3 of Part 18 of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying parinerships by The
Parnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been underiaken so that we might state to the
Pannership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose,
To the fullest extent permitted by iaw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Parinership's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

7/
lan Cowan (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP 1 Wesiferry Circus
Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf

London E14 4HD
3y August 2019
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 74 256
Interest income 54,560 73,247
54,647 73,503

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 8 {782,161) 725,596
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 997,011 {359,801)
Profit for the financial year 269,497 439,298

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continving operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The nates on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statemants.
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financlal Position

Non-current assets
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Parthers

Partners' accounts
Capital contribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained earnings

Total Partners’ Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

Notes

As at As at

30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
1,008,140 2,173,311
24 580 90,637

147 1,075

24,727 100,712

{38) (1,000)
24,689 949,712
1,032,829 2,273,023
a0 80
4,009,380 4,009,380
(7,632,4586) (6,122,765)
4,655,825 4,386,328
1,032,829 2,273,023

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on é‘ /q7 2019.

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partnars LLP

Ot T ol e

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12412
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South Yerkshire Pension Autherity Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
1 Background and Partnership Agreement

South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited Partnership (the “Partnership*) established in Engiand
under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the "Agreement”} dated 30 June
2007.

The principal purpose of the Parinership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 30 June 2007 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Partnership have been sold or liquidated unless extended or dissolved sarlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
30 June 2007.

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financlal Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA”).
As a conseguence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Staternent of compliance

The financial statemerts of the Parinership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of lreland” ("FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option fo not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Parinership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
In relation to the Parinership's financial statements:

(a} Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling (“GBP”, “£™), which is also the Partnership’s functionat currency.

The preparation of financial siatements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. it also requires the General Partner {o exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Partnership's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b) Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount commitied. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments to meet future
abligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after considaration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Parnership has adequate
resources o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concem basis in preparing the financial statements.
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued}

3
(©

{d)

(e)

{

Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenus can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entitied to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priarity Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficient lo pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shail be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Parinership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annuat Commitrments
pursuant o Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Partnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Partner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
(i} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing tramsaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest,

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the asset expire or are
settied, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or (¢} control of the assei has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally
sell the asset to an unreiated third party without imposing additional resfrictions.

(i) Financial liabilities

Basic financial fiabilities, fncluding trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument s measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired In the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
nat, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabiiities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or axpires.

t KEY CAPITAL
KC PARTNERS page 12



South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Pesition at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair valua
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with international Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made,

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investmants

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannpt be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation technigues common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily eamings multiples and recent comparable fransactions. The inputs in the earnings multiples models include
observable data, such as earnings multiples of comparable companies to the relevant portfolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the portfolic company. Changes in assumptions about these faclors
could affect the reported fair value of investments, The models used fo determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying perfarmancs of the portfolic companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
those companies belng unable to meet their loan stock obligations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors' remuneration have been borne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investiments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incurred by the General Pariner through the management and administration of the Partnership is bome
by the General Pariner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Prority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome.

é Trade and other receivabies
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 24,580 89,637
24,580 99,637

7 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Due to parallel funds - 082
Other payables 38 38
38 1,000
KEY CAPITAL

KCP PARTNERS page 13



South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued}

B Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Shares Loan Stock Total
£ £ £
Cost
As at 1 May 2018 145,176 947,981 1,093,157
Disposals {27,492} (600,207) (627,699}
Restructuring * - 244,689 244,689
As at 30 Aprl 2019 117,684 582,483 710,147
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 1,065,965 14,189 1,080,154
Change for the year (782,161) - {782,161)
As at 30 April 2019 283,804 14,189 297,993
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2018 401,488 606,652 1,008,140
As at 30 April 2018 1,211,141 962,170 2,173,311

* The Partnership has soid its loan note in EarthStream Global Limited (*ESG") to CloudStream Giobal as part of
refinancing of ESG on 14 June 2018. Furthertmore, CloudStream Global has changed its name 10 TechStream Group
Heldings Limited on 15 August 2018. Alse, the Partnership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of
loan note in Templine for a 4% secured loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or ioss:

+ Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

¢« level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

+ level 3. Valuation tachniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is uncbservable

The Partnership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £1,008,140 (30 Apni 2018; £2,173,311)
were categorised under this category.

Kc ' KEY CAPITAL
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South Yorkshire Pension Authority Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

9 investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Qwaership

Slamo Azzuri Limited {t/a Templine) Provigion of recruitment
Templine (4% Secured Loan Notes}) | UK sarvices to the logistics N/A N/A

sector
Neville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufaciure and
£1 A’ Ordirary Shares i UK installation of bespoke 15 0.00%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 furnitura
Woells Producer of specialist
ip ‘A’ Ordinary Shazes v UK additive masterbatch and 610,361 4.29%
10% Subordinated ‘A’ Loan Stock - 2011 compounds
Techstream

R t for il and
Techstream Group Hoidings Limited (Loan notes) \ UK Zz:lﬂf?nini ngthseeSt ;s N/A N/A
Haliam
Recruitment for the

£1 Praferred Ordinary Shares Vil UK medical sectar 14,188 1.40%

10% Fixed Rate Secured Loan Stock - 2021
* Reprasents the shareholding of investors opting in the rollover fallowing the sale of Neville Johnson in May 2014.

10 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entiled to a fee from the General Partner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owan Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duguenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners |LLP. The General Partner received £13,829 (30 April 2018: £19,604) as a Priority
Profi{ Share and there were no amounts cutstanding at the year end.

11 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners {General Pariner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a lirnited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

12 Provision for Carried Interest

If the investment portfolio were 1o be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2019,
there would be a reallocation of income between Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would realiocate ta Key Capital Pariners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £3,269 (30 April 2018: £26,514)
for Key Capital Partners Fund |, £52,102 (30 April 2018: £47,334) for Key Capital Partners Fund iV, £778 (30 April
2018: £4,121) for Key Capital Pariners Fund V and £42 469 (30 April 2018: £104,251) for Key Capital Partners Fund
VIi being an estimate, calcuiated in accordance with the {erms of the Limited Partnership Agreement, of the carried
interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 Aprit 2019.

KC P | KEY.CAPITAL
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LLP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager

Key Capitat Partners (General Partner) Limited {the “General Partner”} has appointed Key Capital Pariners LLP (the
“Manager*) to manage the Parinership. The Manager presents the financial statements for Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
{the "Partnership”} for the year ended 30 April 2019.

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “small” under Section 4148 of The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a strategic report.

Disclosure of the Information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are awars, there is no relevant audit informatfon of
which the Parinership’s auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

Q,/éw //%}7‘23/

Owen Trotter
Designated Member
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Pariner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations. ]

Company law as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations™) requires the General Pariner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Partnership's finandial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
to qualifying parinerships, the General Pariner must not approve the financial statements unless it is safisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Pariner is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Pariner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership’s transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

KC P | l;EYR?-ﬁIPéTQ t§ page 5



Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Opinion

Woe have audited the Financial Statements of Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP (the “Partnership”} for the year ended 30
Aprit 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Positicn, the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partners and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the Financial Staterments:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant fo our audii of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions refating to going concern

We have nathing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to repori (o
you where:

+ the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

+ the General Partner has nct disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financizal statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Cur opinion en the financial
statemnents does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is o read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiatly
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obfained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statemenis or a material misstatement of the
other information. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatemeant of this
other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions an ather matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
s the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirernents,

KC P | KEY CARITAL
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP {continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Parinership and ifs environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nathing to report in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006, as applied
to qualifying partnerships reguires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« the Parinership was not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the General Partnar

As explained more fully in the Statement of Generai Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner {s responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Pariner is responsible for assessing the Partnership's ability to
continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the General Partner either intends to liquidate the Partniership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repert that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsiblilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This descripfion forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, as applied to qualifying parinerships by The
Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our sudit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Parinership's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

e lop

lan Cowan (Senlor Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Litejohn LLP 1 Weslferry Circus

Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf

< London E14 4HD
August 2019
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1LP
Annuat Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprit 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 Aprll 2018

Notes £ £

Bank interest 16 110
interest income 17,971 13,103
17,987 13,213

Unrealised {|oss) / gain on investments 8 (85,018) 257,868
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 94 638 {179,902)
Profit for the financial year 27,607 91,179

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KCP | KEY CAPITAL
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Finanhclal assets held af fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets atfributable to Partners

Partners’ accounts
Capital confribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Pariners
Retained earnings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial stataments.

As at As at

30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £

326,383 477,139
4,113 5772

as 70

4,199 5,842

{19) (19)

4,180 5,823
330,553 482,962

75 75
1,263,714 1,293,714
(2,157,178} {1,977,172)
1,193,952 1,166,345
330,563 482,962

Thesa financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102,

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capitai Partners LLP on 4/ g 2019

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners LLP

(ot Tt o™

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12411
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Notes to the Financlal Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP is a Limited Partnership (the “Partnership"), established in England under the Limited
Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the "Agreement’) dated 30 June 2007.

The principal purpose of the Partnership is to carry on the business of investing in qualilying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreament.

The Partnership commenced operations on 30 June 2007 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Partnership have been sold or figuidated unless extended or dissolved eariier in accordance with its Agreement dated
30 June 2007.

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ('FSMA™).
As a consequence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operate coilective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is alse authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102"} and the Companies
Agct 2008 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partrierships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the optien to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the pericd, unless ofherwise stated. The Parinership has adapted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relafion to the Partnership's financial statements:

(@) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have bean prepared on a going concarn basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling ("GBP", "£"), which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Partnership’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degres of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b} Going concern

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calis based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Parinership has adequate remalning capital commitmenis to meet future
obligations, payment of Priarity Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitmenits to fund those future obligations.

After making enqun’]es the General Partner has a reascnable expectation that the Partnership has adequate

resources t0 continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

KC P EEYR ?ﬁ‘quﬁ‘ Ls: page 11



Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3

(€

(d)

(e)

®

KCP i

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured re!iabiy and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.
Allocation of Net income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Pariner is entiled to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Perlod is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shall be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Partnership is not subject to texation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Partner,

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
(i) Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivatents, are initially recognised at the
transaction price, unless the arrangement constittes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Other basic financial asssts, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is narmally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprahensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contracfual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownershlp of the asset are transferred to another
party or {c) control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally
sell the asset o an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabiiifies, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the dabt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires,
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued}
(g} Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. in subseguent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other faclors,
including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

Whaen the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation technigues common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the earnings multiples models include
observable data, such as earnings multiples of comparable companies to the relevant portfolio company, and
uncbservable data, such as forecast eamings for the portfolio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the portfolio companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
those companies being unable to meet their loan stock obfigations, either in part or in full,

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors’ remuneration have been bome by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditura incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financial statements, These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other receivables
As at As af
30 April 2019 30 Aprii 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 4113 5,772
4113 5,772

7 Trade and other payables

As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Other payables 19 19
19 19

KEY CAPITAL
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Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Shares Loan Stock Total

£ g £

Cost
As at 1 May 2018 52,559 192,942 245,501
Disposals (432) (111,460} {111,892)
Restructuring * - 46,154 46,154
As at 30 April 2019 52,127 127,636 179,763
Change in Fair Value
As at 1 May 2018 231,638 - 231,638
Change for the year {85,018} - {85,018}
As at 30 April 2018 146,620 - 146,620
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2018 198,747 127,636 326,383
As at 30 April 2018 284,197 192,942 477,138

* The Partnership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferrad consideration of loan note in Templine for a 4% secured
loan note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018.

The Parmership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

+« Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

s level 2; Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 Aprit 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

¢ Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unchservable

The Parinership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £326,383 (30 April 2018: £477,139) were
categorised under this category.

KCP 1 FRRFVERS page 14



Sir Peter Vardy KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audifed Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (confinued)

9 investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Cwnership
Siamo Azzuri Limited (ta Templine) Provision of recruitment
Templine (4% Secured Loan Notes}) | UK services to the logisfics NiA N/A
' sector
Neville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and
£1 'A' Ordinary Shares j UK installation of bespoke 388 0.08%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 fumniture
Wells Producer of speciafist
1p ‘A’ Ordinary Shares v UK additive masterbatch 305,180 2.15%
10% Subordinated 'A’ Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds

* Reprasents the shareholding of investors epting in the rollaver following the sale of Neville Johnson in May 2014,

10 Related Party Transactlons

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entitied to a fee from the General Partner
for its services. Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage, Phifip Duquenoy and James Hall are designated
members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Pariner received £4,710 (30 April 2018: £6,050) as a Priotity
Profit Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.

i Uitimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited hability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party.

12 Provision for Carried interest

If the investment portfolic were fo be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 Aprit 2019,
there would be a reallocation of Income between Key Capitat Partners (Carried interast) LLP and those of the other
Partners,

This would realiocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £5,577 (30 April 2018: £15,241)
for Key Capital Partners Fund |, £26,051 (30 April 2018; £23,667) for Key GCapital Partners Fund !V and £195 (30
April 2018: £1,030) for Key Canpital Partners Fund V being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the
Limited Partnership Agreemeni, of the carried interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April
2019.
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners {General Pariner) Limitad (the “General Partner’) has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP {the
“Manager”) to manage the Partnership. The Manager presents the financial statements for Adrian Derx Fund KCP1
LP (the “Partnership”) for the year ended 30 Aprif 2019,

Strateglc Report

The Partnership is considered as “small” under Section 414B of Tha Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report} Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a sirategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Partnership's auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make thernselves aware of any relevant audit information and fo establish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisicns relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 20086, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behaif of the Manager

(veor Frd OV

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

4’/8’/ 2019
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law as applied to qualifying parinerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
"Regulations™) requires the General Partner to prepare financlal statements for each financial year, Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Parnership's financial statemenis in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
to qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period, In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been foliowed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the geing concern basls unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any lime the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irrggularities.
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP (the "Parinership”) for the year ended 30
April 218 which comprise the Siatement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Partnars and notes to the financial statements, including a
surnmary of significant accounting policles. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable faw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended,;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as applied fo
qualifying partnerships by The Paitnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We belisve
that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Coanclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in refation to which the 1SAs (UK} require us to report to
you where:

« the General Pariner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

s the General Partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Parfnership's ability to contlnue to adopt the going concetn basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. in connection with our audit of the financiat statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;
« the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC ' KEY CAPITAL
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

indepandent Auditor's Report to the Members of Adrian Derx Fund KCP4 LP (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its enviranment obtained in the course of the
audit, we hiave not identified material misstatements in the Repoit of the Manager.

We have nothing lo report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008, as applied
fo qualifying partnerships requires us io report to you if, in our opinion:

« adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« the Partnership was not entitted to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Repori of the Manager, and the exemption from preparting a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the Partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concemn
basis of accounting unless the General Partner seither intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that inciudes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs (UK) will aiways detect a material misstatetment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Partnership’s members, as a bedy, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by [aw, we do not accept or assume responsibility o anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formad.

Lanlnd~

lan Cowan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Littfejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus

Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf

é London E14 4HD
August 2019
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 April 2018

Nofes £ £

Bank interest 8 53
interest income 1,367 5,260
1,375 5,313

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments 7 (45,294) 93,897
Realised gain / (loss) on investments 48,732 {89,951)
Profit for the financial year 2,813 9,358

All resufts shown in the Statement of Comprehensive income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KC | KEY CAPITAL
‘"PARTNERS page 8



Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 [P

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabllities
Trade and ofher payables

Net Current Assets

Net Assets attributable to Partners

Partners' accounts
Capital contribution account
Loan account
Distribution to Partners
Retained earnings

Total Partners' Funds

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

As at As at

30 April 2018 30 April 2018
£ £

27,886 103,427
59 51

10} e

49 a1
27,935 103,468
73 73

427 438 427 438
(862,968B) (784,620)
463,380 460,577
27,935 103,468

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capital Partners LLP on &' / § 201e.

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners L.LP

Gl Tl 107

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number .LP12413

KCP 52525
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP is a Limited Partnership (the "Partnership”) established in England under the Limited
Parinerships Act 1807, by the Limited Partnership Agreement (the "Agreement”) dated 15 July 2007.

The principal purpose of the Parinership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnership commenced operations on 15 July 2007 and will continue in exisience until all investments of the
Partnership have been sold or liquidated unless extended or dissolved earier in accordance with its Agreement dated
15 July 2007.

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA®).
As a consequence, the Manager is permitied to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their partfofios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business In the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in complBance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entifies requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of ireland” ("FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2008 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the option to not prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied In the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise stated. The Partnership has adopied
FRS 102 in these financiai statements where applicable.

The foliowing accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation fo the Partnership's financial statements:

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost conventicn, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling {"GBP*, "£"), which is also the Partnership's functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain crifical
accounting estimates. it also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Partnership's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(v Going concem

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Parinership has adequate remaining capital commitments to meet fulure
obligations, payment of Pricrity Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on investments wili only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligations.

Aftor making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectalion that the Partnership has adequate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

KCP I ERRSTERS | page 11



Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year endad 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

3
(c)

(d)

{e)

o

KCP

Summary of significant accounting policles {continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
sconomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Pactnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recegnised on a receivable basis,
Aliocation of Net income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entifted to a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Pariners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership Income in
any Accounting Period is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfail shall be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Parnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Partner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
(i} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of inferest.

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and-the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are dergcognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or {c) control of the asset has been transferred to ancther party who has the practical ability to unilaterally
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i} Financial llabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest,

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initialiy af the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial iabifities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

PIT,
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
{g) Fair value of investments

Investments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with Internationat Private Equity and Venturs
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjusiments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the earnings multiples models include
observable data, such as earnings mulfiples of comparable companies to the relevant porifolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast earnings for the portfolio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of invesiments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underiying perfonmance of the portiolio companies could cause a ioss to the Partnership as a result of
those companies being unable to meet their loan stock obligations, either in part or in full.

5 Expendlture

General administrative expenses for the year, including auditors’ remuneration have been bome by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
- of the cost of investments,

Expenditure incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Pariner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other payables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Other payables 10 10
10 10

| KEY CAPITAL
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

7 Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Shares Loan Stock Total

£ £ E

Cost
As at 1 May 2018 379 57,754 58,133
Disposals (186} (53,138) (53,324)
Restructuring * - 23,077 23077
As at 30 April 2019 193 27,693 27,886
Change in Fair Valus
As at 1 May 2018 45,294 - 45,294
Change for the year (45,294) - (45,294)

As at 30 April 2018 - - -

Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 193 27,693 27,6886
As at 30 Aprit 2018 45673 57,754 103,427

* The Parinership has reissued its £1,500,000 of deferred consideration of loan note in Templine for a 4% secured
lean note as part of its exit on 20 December 2018.

The Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

» Leval 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 ane 30 April 2018 under this category.

» Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

+ Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

The Parinership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £27,886 (30 April 2018: £103,427) were
categorised under this category.

8 Investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Funt Geography activity Sharss Ownership

Siamo Azzurl Limited (t/a Templine) Provision of recruitment

Tampline (4% Secured Loan Nofes) I UK services to the logistics N/A NIA

sector

Neville Johnson Holdings Limited * Manufacture and

£1°A' Ordinary Shares 1 UK installation of bespake 193 0.04%
10% Subordinated Loan Stock - 2015 furniture

* Represents the shareholding of investors apling in the rollover following the sale of Nevilie Johnson in May 2014,

KC P | KEY CAPITAL
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Adrian Derx Fund KCP1 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continusd)

9 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibifities. The Manager is entitled fo a fee from the General Partner -
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitagse and Philip Duquenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Partner received £1,319 (30 April 2018: £2,074) as a Priority
Profit Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.

10 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Pariners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited liabilty partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom. There is no
ong overall controliing party.

11 Provision for Carried Interest

If the investment portfolic were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2019,
there would be a reallocation of Income betwsan Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Pariners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Pariners {(Carried Interest) LLP Nef Income of £2,789 (30 April 2018: £7,621) for
Key Capital Partners Fund | and £78 (30 April 2018: £412) for Key Capital Partners Fund V being an esfimate,
calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited Parinership Agreement, of the carried interest due to Key
Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April 2019.
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Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Raport of the Manager
Key Capital Partners {General Pariner) Limited (the "Generat Pariner™) has appoinied Key Capital Partnars LLP (the

“Mznager”) to manage the Parinership, The Manager presents the financial statements for Rosalind Anita Jane Smith
Fund KCP2 LP (the "Parinership") for the year ended 30 April 2019,

Strategic Report

The Partnership is considered as “small’ under Seclion 414B of The Companles Act 2006 (Strategic Repori and
Diactors’ Repart) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Parinerships, and it is therefore exempt fram preparing
a sirategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they ara aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Partnership’s audilor is unaware and that they have faken all steps that they ought have laken in order fo

make thomselves aware of any refevant audit information and to estabiish that the Partnership’s auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared In accordance with the special provisians relating to small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied o Qualifying Partnershlps.

Signed on behalf of tha Manager

Owen Tt~

Owen Trotter
Designatad Metmber

6/ % 2019
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Rosalind Anita Jana Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year anded 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities In respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsibie for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations”) requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the Genera! Partner has prepared the Partnership's financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
to qualifying partnerships, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfiad that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Parinership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner Is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounfing estimates thal are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business,

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Pannership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership and enable it to ansure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Regulations. The General Partner Is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Irregularities.
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Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Membars of Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP (the *Partnership”) for the
year ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Aftributable to Partners and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

in our opinion the Financial Statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the Partnership's affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice;
and

+« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companles Act 2008, as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Parinerships (Accounls) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable jaw.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Parnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We belleve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concem

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:

+ tha General Parner's use of the going concem basis of accounting In the preparation of the financial
stalements is not appropriate; or

« the General Pariner has not disclosed in the financial stalements any identified material uncerlainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership's abllity to continue to adopt the going concemn basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue,

Other Information

‘The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our audltor's report thereon. The General Pariner is responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial
statements does not caver the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon, In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is malerially
inconsistent with the financial stalements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
(o determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there Is 2 material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

Wa have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinicns on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our apinion, basad on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
= the information given in the Report of tha Manager for the financial year for which the &nancial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

KC P LSEYH ll:l; page &



Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audiled Financial Statements far year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Repott io the Members of Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 L P {continued)
Mattars on which we are required to repart by exception

In the Eght of the knowledge and underslanding of the Parinership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified materiai missiatements in the Repord of the Manager.

Wae have nothing 1o report in raspect of the following matiers in relation to which the Companies Act 2006, as applied
io qualifying partnerships requires us o report to you if, in our opinion:

= adequate accounfing records have not baen kepl, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received

from branchas not visited by us; or

the financtal statements are nol in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ the Partrership was nct enliled fo take advanlage of the small companies’ exemption, as applied o
qualifying parinerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemplion from preparing a
Strategic Repart.

L g

Responsibilities of the General Partnar

As explained more fully In the Statement of General Partner's Responskilities, the General Pariner is responsible for
the preparation of the financia) statements and for being salisfied that they give a lrue and falr view, and for such
intemnal control as the General Partner determines i3 necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from materigl misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financlal statements, the General Pariner is responsibla for assessing the Parinership's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless the General Partner either intends 1o liquiiate the Parinership or to cease operations, or
have no reafistic altemative but io do so.

Auditor's responslbilities for the audit of the financlal statemonts

Our aobjactives ara to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a whole ars frea from
malerial misslatement, whether due lo fraud or eror, and to issue an auditors seporl that includes our opinion.
Reasonabla assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not 8 guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement whan It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregale, they ¢ould reasonably be expected to influence the
aconomic decisions of users {akan on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audlt of the financlal stalemenis is located on the Financial
Reparling Council’s websiie at: www.fr¢ org. ul/guditoreresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report,

Use of our report

This report Is made solely to the Parinership's members, as a body, In accordance with the Limiled Partnership
Agreement and Chapler 3 of Part 18 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to qualifying parinerships by The
Parinerships (Accounts) Regufations 2008. Our audif work has been undertaken so that we might state fo the
Parinership's members those malters we are raquired to state (o them In an auditor's report and for no olher purpose.
To the fullest extent permilted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibifity to anyone, other than the
Parthership and the Partnership's members as a body, for our audit work, for this repord, or for the opinions we have
formed.

INR

lan Cowan (Senlor Statutory Auditor)

For and on hehalf of PKF Littlejohn LLP 1 Westferry Circus
alulory Auditor Canary Wharf
{London E414 4HD

August 2019
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Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 L.P
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Incame

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
Notas £ £
Interest income 5,467 6,491
Unrealised gain on investments 7 2,168 58,291
Realised loss on investments - (24,008)
Profit for the financial year 7,635 40,774

All results shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are from continuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no

Statemeni of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 ta 15 form part of these financial statements.

KCP 55532
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Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Financial Position

As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
Notes £ £
Non-current assefs
Financial assets heid at fair value through profit or loss 7 151,078 152,032
Curront assets
Trade and other receivables 6 226 11,715
Cesh and cash aquivalents 23 33
258 11,748
Current Liabllitiss
Trade and other payables {2) (2}
Not Current Assots 267 11,746
Not Assets attributable to Partners 151,336 163,778
Partners’ accounts
Capital contribution account 73 73
Loan account 301,886 381,886
Distribution to Partners (328,309) {(308,231)
Retained sarnings 97,685 90,060
Total Partners' Funds 151,335 163‘778

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the Small Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,

Key Capiltal Partners LLP on 2018,
/¢

Signed on behalf of Key Capital Partners | LP

Owen Tolle”

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12943
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Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprif 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements
1 Background and Partnership Agresment

Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP is a Limited Partnership (the “Partnership™), established in England under
the Limited Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited Partnership Agreement {the "Agreement™) dated 25 April 2008.

The principal purpose of the Parinership is to camy on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The PartﬁafShip commenced operations on 1 May 2008 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Parinership have been sold or liquidated unless extended or dissolved earlier In accordance with its Agreement dated
25 April 2008,

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 {"FSMA").
As a caonsequence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operale coliective investment schemes and manage
their porifolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority.

2 .  Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Partnership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Repoiting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of ireland” (“FRS 102") and the Companies
Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

The Partnership has applied the Small Entities Regime under FRS 102 and exercised the oplion to nol prepare a
Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting paolicies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless otherwise staled. The Partnership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statemenis whera applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Parinership's financia! statements:

(@) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presentad
in Pound Sterling (*GBP", L"), which is also the Partnership's functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wilh FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Parinership's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degrae of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumplions and estimates are significand to the financial statements are disclosed in Nole 4.

(b) Going concen

The Partnership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the lavel of commitments
of each Partner. Partners have a legal commitment per the Agreement ta pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Parnership has adequate remaining capital commitments o meet future
obligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and other expenses. Any follow on Investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectalion that the Parnership has adequate
resaurces to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, it continues {o adopt the
going concern basls in preparing the financial stataments.

KC P EE‘;QQT?E page 11



Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annuat Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Agpril 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3

{©)

(9

(e)

(f

Summary of significant accounting pelicles (continued)
Revenue recognition

The Parinership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it Is probable that the
economic benefils associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognisad on a recalvable basis.
Allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entitled lo a Priority Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quartery in advance. lf the Parinership fncome in
any Accounling Period Is insufficient to pay the Prority Profit Share In full, the amount of the shorifall shalt be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interast free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuant to Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxalion

The Partnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of aach individual Partner.

Financial instruments
The Parinership has chesen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
{i) Financial assels

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
transaction price, uniess the arangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted al a market rate of interest,

GOther basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured al fair value,
which is nommally the transaction price. Such assets are subsaquently carsied at fair value and the changes in
fair value ara recognised in the Statament of Comprehensive income.

Financliat assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
setlled, or {b) subsiantiaily all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are {ransferred io another
party or (¢) control of the asset has been transferred 1o another party who has the practical abllity to unilateralty
sell the asset to an unrelated third party withouwt imposing additional restrictions.

(i) Financial liabitities

Basic financia! liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, whers the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the fulure receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are abligations o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabililies if payment is due within one year or less. if
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual cbligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

KCP IERRSVTRS page 12
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Rosalind Anita Janes Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
(g) Fair value of investmenls

Investments are camried in the Statement of Financial Posilion at cost in the first year unless there is a dear
indication of appreciation or impairment in value. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as calculated by the Manager at the reporiing date, in accordance with Intemnational Privale Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year In which the adjustiment is made.

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgemenis are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the clrcumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannol be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques common in the private equity funds industry,
primarily earnings multiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the eamings mukiples models include
observable data, such as eamings multiples of comparable companies to ithe relevant portfolio company, and
unobservable data, such as forecast eamings for the portfolio company. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewad by the Manager.

Changes in the underying performance of the portfolic companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a resuit of
those companies being unable 1o meet their lban stock obligations, efther in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the vear, including auditors’ remuneration have been bome by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditura incurred by the General Partner through the management and administration of the Parinership is borme
by the General Partner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Pariners.

All other expendilure is accounted far in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

6 Trade and other raceivables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest recaivable 226 11,715
226 11,715

KEY CAPITAL
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Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7 Financlal assets heid at fair value through profit or loss
Shares Loan Stock Total
£ £ £
Cost
As at 1 May 2018 25,870 54,594 80,864
Disposais - {3,122) {3,122)
As at 30 April 2019 25,870 51,872 77,742
Change in Fair Value ‘
As at 1 May 2018 71,168 - 71,168
Change for the year 2,168 - 2,168
As at 30 April 2019 73,336 - 73,336
Fair Vatue
As at 30 April 2019 99,206 51,872 151,078
As at 30 April 2018 97,038 54,994 152,032

Tha Partnership uses the following hierarchy to estimale the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

s Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
The Parinership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

e Level 2: Valualion fechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no invesiments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

+ Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significanl to the fair value
measurament is unobservable

The Partnership's Investments as at A0 April 2019 amaunting to £151,078 (30 April 2018: £152,032) were

categorised under this category.
B Investment Undertakings
Business Numbaer of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership
Wells Producer of specialist
1p 'A' Ordinary Shares v UK additive masterbateh 152,500 1.07%
10% Subordinated ‘A’ Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds
9 Related Party Transactions

The Genearal Partner has entered into a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed ceriain responsibiiities. The Manager is enlitled to a fee from the General Partner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duquenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Pariner received £842 (30 April 2018: £1,296} as a Priority Profit
Share and there ware no amounts outstanding al the year end.
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Rosalind Anita Jane Smith Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financlal Statements (continued)

10 Ultimate Controlling Party

The immediate controlling party of tha Partnership is Key Capital Partners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited hability parinership incorporaled in the United Kingdom. There is no
one overall controlling party. :

1 Provision for Carried Interast

If the investment portfolio were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Staternents at 30 Aprit 2019,
there would be a reallocation of income batwean Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Partners.

This would reallocate to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP Net Income of £13,026 (30 Aprit 2018: £11,834)

for Key Capital Partners Fund IV baing an estimale, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited
Partnership Agreement, of the carried interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carmied Interest) LLP at 30 April 2019.

KCP I EEY.SARmAL page 15
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Report of the Manager

Key Capital Partners {Genera! Partner) Limited (the *General Partner") has appointed Key Capital Partners LLP (the
"Manager”) to manage the Partnaership. The Manager presents the financial statements for Steven Lloyd Edwards
Fund KCP2 LP (the "Partnership’) for the year ended 30 April 2019.

Strategic Report

The Parinership is considered as “small” under Section 4148 of The Companies Act 2008 (Sfrategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, as applied to Qualifying Partnerships, and it is therefore exempt from preparing
a sirategic report.

Disclosure of the information to the auditors

The General Partner and Manager confirm that so far as they are aware, there Is no relevant audit information of
which the Partnership’s auditor is unaware and that they have taken all steps that they ought have taken in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Partnership's auditor is aware of
such information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating {o small companies with part 15 of
the Companies Act 2008, as applied o Qualifying Partnerships.

Signed on behalf of the Manager

(e el &

Owen Trotter
Designated Member

é/‘é 2019
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and financial statements in accordance with
appiicable faw and reguiations,

Campany law as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations”) requiras the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law,
the General Partner has prepared the Partnership’s financial statements in accordance with the statement of
compliance and accounting policies in Note 2 and Note 3 to the financial statements. Under company law as applied
to qualifying partnerships, the General Pariner must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Partnership for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

select suitable accounting policles and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, as specified in accordance with the Limited
Partnership Agreement, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial stataments; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain
the Partnership's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the
Partnership and enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as appiied to
quafifying partnerships by the Regulatians, The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and othet Irmegularities.
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Steven Lioyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP (the "Parinership®) for the year
ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive income, the Statement of Financial Position,
the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Pariners and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepied
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the Financial Statements;

« give a frue and fair view of the state of the Partnership’s affairs as at 30 April 2019 and of its profit for the
year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracfice;
and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to
quaiifying partnerships by The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Partnership in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilifies in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions refating to going concern

We hava nothing o report in respect of the {ollowing matters in refation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report 10
you where;

s the General Partner's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

« the General Pariner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Partnership's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at Ieast twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The General Partner is responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the ather information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears fc be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2008
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
» the information given in the Report of the Manager for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
+ the Report of the Manager has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

KC , KEY CAPITAL
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Independent Auditor's Report ta the Members of Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP (continued)
Matters on which we are required to report hy exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Manager.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation fo which the Companies Act 2006, as applied
to quaiifying partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or refurns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
we have not received ali the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the Parinership was not entitled to take advantage of the small companles’ exemption, as applied to
qualifying partnerships, in preparing the Report of the Manager, and the exemption from preparing a
Strategic Report.

Responsibilities of the General Partner

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's Responsibilities, the General Partner is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the General Partner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the General Partner is responsible for assessing the Parinership’s ability fo
cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going <oncern
basis of accounting unless the General Partrier either intends to liquidate the Partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audltor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.tik/auditorsrespaonasibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with the Limited Partnership
Agreement and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008, as applied to qualifying partnerships by The
Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone, other than the
Partnership and the Partnership’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

lan Cowan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PKF Littlejchn LLP 1 Westferry Circus
Statutory Auditor Canary Wharf
London E14 4HD

August 2019
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2019 30 Aprilt 2018

Notes £ £

Interest income 5,467 6,491
Unrealised gain on investments 7 2,168 58,291
Realised loss on investments - (24,008)
Profit for the financial year 7,635 40,774

All results shown in the Statement of Compiehensive Income are from coniinuing operations. The
Partnership has no comprehensive income other than the amounts recognised above. Accordingly, no

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income has been prepared.

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

KCP | KEY CAPITAL
TPARTHNERS
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aptil 2019

Statement of Financial Position

As at As at
3D April 2019 30 Aprl) 2018
Notes £ £
Non-current assets

Financial assels held at fair value through profit or loss 7 151,078 152,032
Current assets

Trade and other receivables 6 226 11,715

Cash and cash equivalents 33 33

259 11,748
Current Liabhllities -

Trade and other payables (2) 2)
Net Current Assets 257 11,746
Net Assets attributable to Partners 151,335 163,778
Partners' accounts

Capital contribution account 73 73

Loan account 381,886 381,886

Distribution to Partners (328,309) {308,231)

Retained sarnings 97,685 90,050
Total Partners' Funds 151,338 163,778

The notes on pages 11 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities
subject to the Smali Entities Regime and in accordance with the provisions of FRS 102.

The financial statements on pages 8 to 15 were approved by the Designated Members of the Manager,
Key Capital Partners LLP on é/{ 2019.

Signed on behaif of Key Capital Pariners LLP

Olwene T4

Cwen Trotter
Designated Member

Partnership Number LP12942
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 Aprii 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Background and Partnership Agreement

Steven Lioyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP is a Limited Parinership (the “Partnership™), established in England under the
Limited Partnerships Act 1907, by the Limited Parinership Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 25 April 2008.

The principal purpose of the Parinership is to carry on the business of investing in qualifying companies, with a view
to providing profits for distribution in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The Partnershlip commenced operations on 1 May 2008 and will continue in existence until all investments of the
Parinership have been sold or liquidated uniess extended or dissolved earlier in accordance with its Agreement dated
25 April 2008.

The Manager is an authorised person under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA”).
As a consequence, the Manager is permitted to manage and operate collective investment schemes and manage
their portfolios, the Manager is also authorised for the conduct of business in the United Kingdom by the Financial
Conduct Authority,

2 Sfatement of compliance

The financial statements of the Parinership have been prepared in compliance with the Agreement, United Kingdom
Generally Accounting Practice, by applying the Small Entities requirements under Financial Reporting Standard 102,
“The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of [reland” ("FRS 102"} and the Companies
Act 2008 as appéed fo qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The Partnership has applied the Small Enfities Regime under FRS 102 and exerc:sed the option to not prepare a
Staterment of Cash Flows.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principat accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied throughout the period, unless othorwise stated. The Partnership has adopted
FRS 102 in these financial statements where applicable.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the Partnership's financial statements:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as
madified by the revaluation of investments held at fair value through profit or loss. The amounts are presented
in Pound Sterling ("GBP", “£"), which is also the Partnership’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. it also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Parinership's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumplions and eslimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b} Going concern

The Parinership meets its working capital requirements through capital calls based on the level of commitments
of each Partner. Pariners have a legal commitment per the Agreement to pay capital into the Partnership up to
the amount committed. The Partnership has adequate remaining capital commitments fo meset future
obligations, payment of Priority Profit Share and ather expenses. Any follow on investments will only be made
after consideration of the sufficiency of the remaining capital commitments to fund those future obligations.

After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Partnership has adequate
resources fo continue in operaticnal existence for the fareseeable future. Accordingly, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

KEYC PITAL
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (¢ontinued)

3
()

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

The Partnership recognises revenue when the revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Partnership.

Bank interest and investment income are recognised on a receivable basis.

(d) Aliocation of Net [ncome, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses

(&

"

KCP ¥

The allocation of Net Income, Net Losses and Realised Capital Gains and Capital Losses is made in
accordance with Section 13 of the Agreement. The General Partner is entitled to a Pricrity Profit Share agreed
by the Limited Partners. The Priority Profit Share is payable quarterly in advance. If the Partnership income in
any Accounting Period Is insufficient to pay the Priority Profit Share in full, the amount of the shortfall shall be
paid to the General Partner out of gains arising from the disposal of Partnership assets, failing which it shall be
advanced interest free by the Partnership to the General Partner as a drawdown from Annual Commitments
pursuani 1o Clause 6 of the Agreement.

Taxation

The Partnership is not subject to taxation and no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements. Any tax on income or capital gains is the responsibility of each individual Partner.

Financial instruments
The Partnership has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.
(Y Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at the
fransaclion price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at & market rate of interast.

Other basic financial assets, including investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value,
which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in
fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or (b} substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another
party or (c} controi of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilateraily
sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i} Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at the transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the fulure receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Trade payables are obligations o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial tiabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the cantractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
3 Summary of significant accounting policles {continued)
{g) Fair value of investments

invesiments are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost in the first year unless there is a clear
indication of appreciation or impairment in vaiue. In subsequent years, the investments are recorded at the fair value
as caleulated by the Manager at the reporting date, in accordance with Intemational Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines. Adjustments in the value of investments are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which the adjustment is made.

4 Crifical accounting estlmates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasanable under the circumstances.

Fair value of investments

When the fair value of investments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position cannot be derived from active
markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques commen in the privale equity funds industry,
primarily earnings muifiples and recent comparable transactions. The inputs in the earnings multiples models include
observable data, such as eamings multiples of comparable companies to the relevant porifolio company, and
uncbservable data, such as forecast earnings for the partfolioc company. Changes in assumgplions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of investments. The models used to determine fair values are validated and
periodically reviewed by the Manager.

Changes in the underlying performance of the portfolio companies could cause a loss to the Partnership as a result of
thase companies being unable to meet their loan stock obligations, either in part or in full.

5 Expenditure

General administrative expenses for the vear, incduding auditors’ remuneration have been borne by Key Capital
Partners LLP, the Manager of the fund. Expenditure incurred in the acquisition of investments is accounted for as part
of the cost of investments.

Expenditure incurred by the General Pariner through the management and administration of the Partnership is borne
by the General Partner in its own financial statements. These amounts are recovered by the General Partner through
a Priority Profit Share charged to the Limited Partners.

All other expenditure is accounted for In the Statement of Comprehensive income.

6 Trade and other receivables
As at As at
30 April 2019 30 April 2018
£ £
Loan stock interest receivable 226 11,715
226 11,715
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7 Financial assets held at fair value through profit or Joss

Shares Loan Stock Total

£ £ £

Cost
As at 1 May 2018 25,870 54,994 80,864
Disposals - (3,122) (3,122)
As at 30 Apiil 2019 25,870 51,872 77,742
Change in Fair Vaiue
As at 1 May 2018 71,168 - 71,168
Change for the year 2,168 - 2,168
As at 30 April 2019 73,336 - 73,336
Fair Value
As at 30 April 2019 99,206 51,872 151,078
As at 30 April 2018 97,038 54,994 152,032

The Partnership uses the foflowing hierarchy to estimate the fair value of its investments which are measured at fair
value through profit or loss:

¢ lLevel 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asssts or liabilities
The Partnership has ne investments as at 30 Agpril 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

+ Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

The Partnership has no investments as at 30 April 2019 and 30 April 2018 under this category.

« Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant fo the fair value
measurement is unobservable

The Partnership’s investments as at 30 April 2019 amounting to £151,078 (30 April 2018: £152,032) were
categorised under this category.

8 Investment Undertakings
Business Number of %
Fund Geography activity Shares Ownership
Wells Producer of specialist
1p 'A’ OrdInary Shares v UK additive masterbatch 152,590 1.07%
10% Suberdinated 'A' Loan Stock - 2011 and compounds
9 Related Party Transactions

The General Partner has entered info a management agreement with the Manager, Key Capital Partners LLP, under
which the Manager has assumed certain responsibilities. The Manager is entitled to a fee from the General Partner
for its services. James Hall, Michael Fell, Owen Trotter, Peter Armitage and Philip Duguenoy are the Designated
Members of Key Capital Partners LLP. The General Partner received £942 (30 April 2018: £1,296) as a Priority Profit
Share and there were no amounts outstanding at the year end.
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Steven Lloyd Edwards Fund KCP2 LP
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for year ended 30 April 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

106 Ultimate Contralling Party

The immediate controlling party of the Partnership is Key Capital Pariners (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Key Capital Partners LLP, a limited liability partnership incorparated in the United Kingdom. Therg is no
one overall controlling party.

11 Provision for Carried Interest

if the investment portfolio were to be fully realised at the values included in the Financial Statements at 30 April 2018,
there would be a reallocation of Income between Key Capital Partners {Carried Interest) LLP and those of the other
Pariners.

This would reallocate o Key Capital Partners (Carried interest) LLP Net income of £13,026 (30 April 2018: £11,834)
for Key Capital Partners Fund IV being an estimate, calculated in accordance with the terms of the Limited
Partnership Agreement, of the carried interest due to Key Capital Partners (Carried Interest) LLP at 30 April 2018.
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